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This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in How to Complete the National Register of
Historic Places Registration Form (National Register Bulletin 16A). Complete each item by marking "x" in the appropriate box or by entering the information
requested. If any item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable.” For functions, architectural classification, materials, and
areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories from the instructions. Place additional entries and narrative items on continuation sheets (NPS
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1. Name of Property

historic name Cromwell’'s Run Rural Historic District
other names/site number VDHR File No. 030-5434

street & number Along Atoka Rd, roughly bounded by Goose Creek (west), U.S. Route 50 {(north), Cromwell’s Run (east),

and U.S. Route 55 (south) not for publication_N/A
city or town __ Marshall, Rectortown, Delaplane, Atoka vicinity X
state _ Virginia code _VA county _Fauquier code 061 zip code _20115, 20140, 20144

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this _X  nomination request
for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and
meets the procedural and professicnal requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property _X__ meets does not meet
the National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant ___ nationally

i X_ locally. (___See copfinuation sheet for additional comments.)

YRR WJ// Zo dg
Signature of certifying official¥ Date & z
Virginia Department of Historic Resources

State or Federal Agency or Tribal government

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. ( ____ See continuation sheet for additional
comments.)
Signature of commenting official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

|, hereby certify that this property is:

_____entered in the National Register
____ See continuation sheet.
_____determined eligible for the National Register Signature of the Keeper
____ See continuation sheet.
______determined not eligible for the National Register
____removed from the National Register Date of Action
_____other (explain):
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5. Classification

Ownership of Property (Check as many boxes as apply) Category of Property (Check only one box)
_X_ private __ building(s)
____public-local _X_ district
____public-State ___site
____public-Federal ____structure

____object

Number of Resources within Property

Contributing Noncontributing

384 469 _ buildings
19 6 _sites

35 51 structures
0 0_ objects

438 526 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National Register _133 (81 within the Rectortown
Historic District; 11 within the Atoka Historic District; 9 on the Hatchers Mill property; 25 on the Oak Hill property; 3 on
the Woodside Property; and 4 on the Brockett property)

Name of related multiple property listing (Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.) ___N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions) SEE CONTINUATION SHEET
Cat: Sub:

Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions) SEE CONTINUATION SHEET
Cat: Sub:

7. Description

Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions)
SEE CONTINUATION SHEET

Materials (Enter categories from instructions) SEE CONTINUATION SHEET
foundation
roof
walls
other

Narrative Description (Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for National Register
listing)

X_A Property is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of



our history.
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X B Property is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past.

X _C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values, or represents a significant
and distinguishable entity whose components lack individual distinction.

D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations (Mark "X" in all the boxes that apply.)

owned by a religious institution or used for religious purposes.

removed from its original location.

a birthplace or a grave.

a cemetery.

a reconstructed building, object, or structure.

a commemorative property.

less than 50 years of age or achieved significance within the past 50 years.
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AR

Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions)

Agriculture Exploration/Settlement
Architecture Military History
Commerce Politics/Government
Education Social History

Entertainment/recreation Transportation
Ethnic Heritage: Black

Period of Significance circa 1760-1958; 1963

Significant Dates _1772, 1852, 1862, 1864, 1963

Significant Person (Complete if Criterion B is marked above) President and Mrs. John F. Kennedy

Cultural Affiliation N/A

Architect/Builder Architects: William Bland “Billy” Dew, Jr. (Rockburn); George Howe (Chilly Bleak); Washington
Reed, Jr. (Claude Thompson Elementary School; formerly Northwestern Elementary School); David Rosenthal
(Sunnyside; Cromwell); Thomas Tileston Waterman (Flint Hill Farm); Emmons H. Woolwine (Maizemoor) Builders:
[First name unknown] Grant (Chilly Bleak); William F. Hanback (Chilly Bleak, Atoka); W. J. Hanback (Chilly Bleak,
Atoka); Bruce T. Hanback (Chilly Bleak, Atoka); William Sutton (Woodside); Luke Woodward (Woodside; Kelvedon)

Narrative Statement of Significance (Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

9. Major Bibliographical References

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)
Previous documentation on file (NPS)

____preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) has been requested.
____previously listed in the National Register

____previously determined eligible by the National Register

____designated a National Historic Landmark

____recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #

____recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #
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Primary Location of Additional Data

_X_ State Historic Preservation Office

Other State agency

Federal agency

Local government

University

Other

Name of repository: _Virginia Department of Historic Resources, Richmond, Virginia

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property _approximately 14,185 acres

UTM References (Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet)

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
1 2 3 4

X_ See continuation sheet.
Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)
Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

namel/title Debra A. McClane, Architectural Historian

organization date__March, August 2008
street & number__4711 Devonshire Road telephone__804/233-3890
city or town Richmond state_VA zip code _23225

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets
Maps A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.
A sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs Representative black and white photographs of the property.
Additional items (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner

(Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.)

name See attached property owners list
street & number telephone
city or town state zip code

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate properties for
listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a benefit in accordance
with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.). A federal agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to
respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB control number.

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 36 hours per response including the time for reviewing instructions,
gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of this form to the
National Register of Historic Places, National Park Service, 1849 C St., NW, Washington, DC 20240.



NPS Form 10-900-a
1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

CONTINUATION SHEET
District

Section __6 Page _1

OMB No.

Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic

Fauquier County, Virginia

6. HISTORIC FUNCTIONS
DOMESTIC
Single Dwelling
Secondary Structure

COMMERCE/TRADE
Specialty Store

Department Store: general store
Warehouse

SOCIAL
Meeting Hall

GOVERNMENT
Post Office

EDUCATION
School

RELIGION
Religious Facility

FUNERARY
Cemetery
Graves/burials

AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE
Processing

Storage

Agricultural Field

Animal Facility

Agricultural Outbuilding

INDUSTRY/PROCESSING/EXTRACTION
Manufacturing Facility
Energy Facility

DEFENSE
Battle site

LANDSCAPE
Unoccupied Land
Natural Feature

TRANSPORTATION
Rail-related
Road-related (vehicular)

CURRENT FUNCTIONS
DOMESTIC

Single Dwelling

Secondary Structure

GOVERNMENT
Post Office

RELIGION
Religious Facility

FUNERARY
Cemetery
Graves/burials

RECREATION AND CULTURE
Sports Facility

Outdoor Recreation
Monument/Marker

AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE
Processing

Storage

Agricultural Field

Animal Facility

Agricultural Outbuilding

LANDSCAPE
Unoccupied Land
Natural Feature
Conservation Area

TRANSPORTATION
Rail-related
Road-related (vehicular)
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7. DESCRIPTION

Architectural Classification:
COLONIAL
EARLY REPUBLIC: Federal
MID-19" CENTURY: Greek Revival
LATE VICTORIAN: Italianate
LATE 19" and 20" CENTURY REVIVALS: Colonial Revival; Classical Revival
LATE 19" and EARLY 20" CENTURY AMERICAN MOVEMENTS: American foursquare; Bungalow/Craftsman
MODERN MOVEMENT: Ranch
OTHER: I-house; Vernacular

Materials:
FOUNDATION

ROOF

STONE

BRICK

CONCRETE
CONCRETE BLOCK

WOOQD: Shingle; Shake

STONE: Slate

METAL.: Copper; Tin; Aluminum
ASPHALT

WALLS

WOOD: Weatherboard; Shingle; Log
BRICK

STONE: Granite; Fieldstone
STUCCO

CONCRETE: Block

SYNTHETICS: Vinyl; Aluminum
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SUMMARY DESCRIPTION

The Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District encompasses approximately 14,185 acres in the north-central section of
Fauquier County in the Northern Piedmont region of Virginia. The district generally is bounded on the west by Goose
Creek and on the east by the western branch of Cromwell’s Run (also called Crummey’s Run). On the southeast
Cromwell’s Run intersects with Whiting Road (Route 622) and the district boundary follows the road northwest to
Old Rectortown Road, then to Rectortown Road (Route 710), and then connects with the line of the Southern
Railway. The rail line is followed to the unpaved O’Bannon Cemetery lane, which then connects with Grove Lane
(U.S. Route 55), which runs in a northwestward direction to its intersection with Maidstone Road (Route 713). The
line then follows Maidstone Road to the intersection of Bolling Branch and Goose Creek, then north along Goose
Creek to U.S. Route 50, and then east to Cromwell’s Run. The National Register-listed villages of Atoka (formerly
Rector’s Cross Roads) and Rectortown (formerly Maidstone) are included within these boundaries. Atoka Road
(Route 713) is the central north-south organizing feature of the district and has historically connected Atoka, located
along the historic Ashby Gap Turnpike (present-day U.S. Route 50/John Mosby Highway), to Rectortown and the
Manassas Gap Railroad (now Southern Railway). The district spans about nine miles north-to-south and about three
and one-half miles east-to-west. The Blue Ridge Mountains are located west of the district and the Bull Run
Mountains are located to the east. The boundaries of the district have been selected to include a significant
concentration of historic architectural resources, landscape features (creeks, pastures, fields, woodland), pristine
vistas, and open spaces that together illustrate the historical uses and appearance of the area. The presence of Goose
Creek and Cromwell’s Run provide natural delineations on the east and the west and the manmade elements of U.S.
Routes 50 and 55 provide logical boundaries on the north and south.

Geographically, the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District is located at the transition between the Piedmont region
and the Blue Ridge Mountains, with the Shenandoah Valley lying to the west. The physical character of the district is
a combination of open pasture fields with rolling hills and wide vistas to the east and west. The center of the district
is a wide, open valley of rolling land that is well-watered by deep springs and creeks. The natural landscape of the
district is complemented by such cultural features as dry-laid stone walls that denote still utilized historic property
boundaries or that define interior fields; narrow historic roadbeds that remain largely unpaved and serve as an interior
transportation network; and sparse modern development. The latter is generally residential in nature and much of it
dates from the last three decades of the twentieth century. Some of this development is modest in nature, but some
follows the historical development pattern of the area of equestrian estates with agricultural complexes that
complement the main dwelling. In some ways, this type of development is not contradictory to the existing historical
development and land use, although the buildings are non-contributing resources.

The major roadways within the district include Atoka Road (Route 713), Grove Lane (U.S. Route 55), the John
Mosby Highway (U.S. Route 50), Maidstone Road (Route 713), and Rectortown Road (Route 710). These roads are
paved, multi-lane routes. The interior of the district is connected by a network of historic routes, most still unpaved or
only paved in part, that include Crenshaw Road (Route 624), Five Points Road (Route 716), Frogtown Road (Route
702), Goose Creek Road (Route 714), Hatchers Mill Road, Lost Corner Road (Route 624), Oak Hill Road (Route
677), Old Carters Mill Road (Route 715), and Whiting Road (Route 622). Many now-private lanes follow the
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abandoned routes of old roadbeds that connected remote properties to primary transportation routes. Where Atoka
Road was realigned in the 1930s, just south of Old Carters Mill Road and south of Atoka Farm, the historic roadbed is
still visible.

As is evident from the selection of the district boundaries, waterways are an important organizing feature of the
district, as well, and in addition to Goose Creek, Bolling Branch, and Cromwell’s Run include the smaller branches of
Chattin’s Run and Rocky Creek, along with numerous unnamed tributaries and manmade ponds that dot the fields at
such farms as Fieldstone (030-0754; 030-5434-0134), Patrickswell (030-5434-0082), Atoka Farm (030-0704; 030-
5434-0067), and Merry Chase (030-0740; 030-5434-0074). The natural waterways played an important part, as well,
in the development of the milling industry within the district. Lee Moffett in his book Water Powered Mills of
Fauquier County, Virginia identifies about nine historical mill sites, mostly gristmills, along the courses of Goose
Creek, Cromwell’s Run, and Bolling Branch that are within or adjacent to the historic district boundaries. While
nearly all of the commercial resources within the district are located in the village of Rectortown and the hamlet of
Atoka, grist- and sawmills are an exception. These resources were historically a major commercial enterprise located
near strong water sources for power. Mills are represented within the district by the circa 1800 Hatcher’s Mill (also
known as Chinn’s Mill) (030-0659; 030-5434-0065), which has been listed individually on the National Register.
Milan Mill (030-5434-0026), located along Goose Creek, originated in the late eighteenth century. These and other
mills were often the impetus for the construction of the interior transportation routes that are still in use in the district.

Excluding the village of Rectortown and the crossroads hamlet of Atoka, both of which are listed in the National
Register as historic districts, the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District is characterized by a pattern of rural
development featuring large estates and working farms. The majority of the land is in active agricultural use
including beef and dairy cattle farming; equestrian facilities for breeding, training, and boarding of horses; and small
vineyards. Into the mid-twentieth century, orchards were also a common endeavor in the area, though most of these
areas have reverted to pastureland. Historic dwellings with associated agricultural and domestic outbuildings
distinguish these estates and farms and lend a pastoral air to the valley. A number of these properties currently are
protected by conservation easements, which reflect the high priority of the local landowners’ commitment to
preserving the open space and agricultural tradition of the area.

Small communities also are found throughout the district. Frogtown, located south of Rectortown at the intersection
of Frogtown Road and Rectortown Road, is an African-American settlement that developed after the Civil War. The
area of Fortune Mountain, also known as Seaton Mountain, is also a historically African-American residential
community within the district. The community of Oak Hill, located in the southern part of the historic district, was a
late-nineteenth-century post office village situated between Marshall (formerly Salem) and Delaplane (formerly
Piedmont Station). The village consisted of a warehouse with a blacksmith’s shop and a store and post office. Today,
the area also contains a small collection of residences and the historic store and warehouse. Lost Corner and Five
Points are two other “crossroads” communities located within the district.

The large number of non-contributing resources is accounted for by the presence of numerous farm buildings that
have been built within the last 50 years. As the area is composed of large working farms and is a living landscape, the
development of additional facilities is a natural outgrowth of the vitality of these properties. Modern dwellings also
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account for some of the non-contributing resources, but a large number of the non-contributing elements are located
on properties where the primary resource is a contributing resource.

The resources within the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District are a diverse collection dating from the mid-
eighteenth century through the mid-twentieth century and illustrate the entire history of Fauquier County’s
architectural development from log dwellings, to hall-and-parlor dwellings, to center-passage plan houses, to I-
houses. Stylistically, these resources range from vernacular log and stone structures of the mid-to-late-eighteenth
century to the refined Federal manor houses of the early nineteenth century. Many of these dwellings were expanded
in the early twentieth century as wealthy northern industrialists moved into the area and transformed the former
subsistence farms into large equestrian estates with the dwellings as the centerpieces. Rockburn (030-0214; 030-5434-
0050) is a typical example of such a property within the district. The oldest section of the house, the central stone part,
was built about 1867 by the Glascock family to replace an earlier house that had burned. A two-story, stone wing was
added and the separate kitchen was later connected to the rest of the house. In the early twentieth century, northern
businessman John S. Phipps, son of Henry Phipps who was a partner with Andrew Carnegie in the steel industry,
began purchasing large tracts of land in the region. His son Hubert made Rockburn his home and engaged local
architect Billy Dew to design the mansard-roofed wing on the north end of the house.

Vernacular buildings rather than “high style” buildings make up the largest number of resources and are reflective of
early-nineteenth-century building practices Examples of prominent vernacular resources include the circa 1820
Glenmore Log Tenant House (030-0568; 030-5434-0025), now clad with stucco, and the circa 1828 “Crooked House”
on Crenshaw Road (030-0593; 030-5434-0048), which originally had a hall-parlor plan. Nationally popular styles
such as the I-house are represented by such examples as the house at 4423 Grove Lane (030-5434-0001) and the
historic tenant dwellings at Patrickswell (030-5434-0082), which also reflect Victorian-era detailing on the porches
and eaves. The district includes several outstanding examples of stone buildings, both modest and grand in scale.
Stone was an abundantly available material in the region and was used both as a foundation material and as a finished
exterior material. Sometimes, the stone exteriors were clad with stucco. Prominent stone dwellings built during the
early-to-late-nineteenth century include the circa 1787 Lake House (030-5434-0070); the Caleb Rector house (030-
0705; 030-5434-0203) in Atoka; the circa 1795 George Mann house in Rectortown (030- 0232; 030-5434-0218); the
circa 1830 section of Stoneleigh (030-0904; 030-5434-0080); the circa 1867 section of Rockburn (030-0214; 030-
5434-0050); the circa 1820 section of Chilly Bleak (030-0569; 030-5434-0172); and the National Register-eligible
property of Maizemoor (030-0669; 030-5434-0160), which was built before 1850. The dwelling at Smitten Farm
(030-0635; 030-5434-0161) is an example of a stone and brick dwelling that has been clad with stucco. Stone
outbuildings are quite common, as well. Prominent brick dwellings in the district dating from the nineteenth century
include the circa 1820 dwelling at Marly (030-0769; 030-5434-0159); the main dwelling at Glenmore Farm (030-
0025; 030-5434-0049), built about 1818; the circal800 dwelling at Glanville (030-0210; 030-5434-0003); and the
front, circa 1820 section of Woodside (030-0059; 030-5434-0186).

Enhancing the collection of dwellings within the district are the complexes—both large and small-- of agricultural
buildings that make up the majority of the resources within the district and include hay barns, dairy barns, stables,
corncribs and silos, meat houses, smokehouses, and livestock shelters. Dairy farms are not as prevalent within the
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district as beef and horse farms, but are represented by resources located on the late-nineteenth- and early-twentieth-
century farms at Paradise Farm (030-0811; 030-5434-0012), Atoka Forge (030-5434-0060), Smitten Farm (030-0635;
030-5434-0161), and buildings now associated with the Rectortown Equine Center (030-5434-0028). Dairy
operations continue at the historic 550-acre Oak Grove Farm (030-5434-0073) as the McLeod Creamery--an organic
farm producing cheese and other dairy products from a herd of Ayrshire cattle. Impressive historical complexes
consisting of barns, stables, silos, meat houses, and other agriculturally-related buildings are present at Rutledge (030-
0514; 030-5434-0004), Merry Chase (formerly Polk-a-Dot Farm, 030-0740; 030-5434-0074), and Chilly Bleak (030-
0569; 030-5434-0172). These complexes contain buildings dating from the late nineteenth and the early twentieth
centuries, and some also contain very recent additions. Modern agricultural buildings associated with horse industry
operations in the district include outdoor and indoor riding arenas and riding pavilions, stables, and the ubiquitous
run-in and loafing sheds found in nearly every fenced field and paddock within the district. The stables typically are
designed with box stalls usually with Dutch (two-part) or sliding stall doors that open to interior aisles and exterior
covered ways. The buildings are predominantly covered by gable and offset gable roofs with louvered pyramidal
cupolas located along the roof ridgelines. Other spaces included in these stables include haylofts, tack rooms, wash
rooms, offices, and often a groom’s apartment. The most elaborate of the modern-day equestrian facilities are located
at Stoneleigh (030-0904; 030-5434-0080); Smitten Farm (030-0635; 030-5434-0161); and Kinross (030-0753; 030-
5434-0128). Large cattle properties in the district include: Virginia Angus Association-member Smitten Farm (030-
0635; 030-5434-0161); Glenmore (030-0025; 030-5434-0049); Edgecliff Farm (030-5434-0858; 030-5434-0027; and
Rutledge (030-0514; 030-5434-0004). Cattle are also raised on property within the district that is leased by the
Virginia Beef Corporation of Haymarket, Virginia.

Cemeteries and family burial sites are found throughout the district and make up most of the contributing sites in the
district. The Rectortown Cemetery (030-5434-0221) is a large community cemetery located at the center of the
historic village and dates to the 1840s. Other cemeteries within the district are generally family cemeteries located on
land that was owned and farmed by the families buried there. Many of these cemeteries date to the early and late
nineteenth century, but burials on family farms and within family plots continue today at several sites.

There are only two archaeological sites recorded within the historic district and both are located along Goose Creek.?
Site 44FQ0076 was recorded in 1985 and is associated with Milan Mill (030-5434-0026). Site 44FQQ0078 records a
fish weir within a channel of the creek that consisted of a single line of stones. Projectile points were reportedly
collected at the site, as well. These two sites indicate that both historic and prehistoric artifacts are likely to be found
within the area of the historic district. The area has been little disturbed save for agricultural activities and limited
road construction. In addition, the area is known to have been traversed by Native American trails and has
historically possessed an abundance of wildlife and water sources, making it suitable for encampments and other
temporary native habitations.

The diversity of the resources found within the district and the continuation of the predominantly rural character of the
open land help to illustrate the nearly 250 years of occupation in the area and provide tangible evidence of the
activities and habits of the people who developed and used the land to serve their needs. Most striking is the retention
of large farms that adjoin one another to create a vast, rolling, contiguous landscape that reflects the historically rural
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use of the land and lends to this region’s very high level of integrity.

This characteristic of openness, the contiguous nature of the farms, and the network of unpaved roads also contribute
to the area’s reputation as one of the best for foxhunting in the country. Two hunt clubs are active in the area: the
Orange County Hunt and the Piedmont Fox Hounds. The area lends itself for such pursuits with its rolling topography
and open pastureland with some areas of woodland and cropland. Another resource associated with the presence of
foxhunting is “Segregation Lane” (030-5434-0060)--the figurative and literal boundary between the two hunt
territories that was established around 1906.

Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District contains elements that illustrate the eleven characteristics of a rural landscape
as defined in the National Register Bulletin Guidelines for Evaluating and Documenting Rural Historic Landscapes:
land uses and activities (farming, milling, use of waterways, transportation systems); patterns of spatial organization
(historic land divisions, historic road systems, pattern of large estates with manor houses); response to natural
environment (use of natural resources in construction, use of land for pasture, pattern of roadways); cultural traditions
(continuation of fox hunting); circulation networks (historic roadways, waterways, railroads); boundary demarcations
(historic property divisions in use, waterways); vegetation related to land use (pasture, woodland, cropland,
vineyards); buildings, structures, and objects (architectural resources including domestic, agricultural, industrial,
educational, religious, and governmental examples); clusters (agricultural complexes, domestic outbuilding
complexes); archaeological sites (mill sites, dwelling sites, burying grounds); small scale elements (stone walls, board
fences, bridges). Viewed together, these elements create a cohesive entity that reflects the occupational activities of
people engaged in the traditional work of agriculture, as well as the recreational pursuits of horse riding and
foxhunting. The area comprises a highly intact, scenic, and picturesque landscape and contains a significant
concentration of buildings, structures, sites, and land that are linked by the continuity of historical and present uses,
vegetation, transportation routes, and natural features. Resources in the area have been surveyed previously by
architectural historians Cynthia McLeod and Maral Kalbian. Both National Register-listed and National Register-
eligible resources are located within the historic district. As mentioned, the village of Rectortown and the hamlet of
Atoka have been listed in the Virginia Landmarks Register (VLR) and placed on the National Register of Historic
Places (NRHP); Hatcher’s Mill and Oak Hill (030-0044) have been listed individually on the VLR and NRHP. In
addition, Maizemoor has been determined to be eligible for listing in the National Register. The district encompasses
an area that is comparable to the “Northern Fauquier” rural historic district that was suggested by Ms. Kalbian in her
2000 countywide architectural survey.®

Detailed Description

Throughout the colonial period, the majority of the area within the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District was part of
the five million-acre Northern Neck Proprietary that was inherited by Thomas, 6™ Lord Fairfax in 1719. Fairfax’s
agents made grants and leases within the area and early settlers built their log and stone houses from materials readily
available from the land. Some of the early (1730-1750) grants in the area within the historic district were conveyed to
Harry Turner, Thomas Weaver, and Charles Burgess, though these owners were largely absentee landlords who lived
in other parts of the Virginia colony and did not occupy the land. Later owners included George Washington, Thomas
Marshall, and John Rector.
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In 1772, Washington held about 600 acres on the east side of the district between Goose Creek and Chattin’s Run,
most of which later became part of Flint Hill Farm (030-564; 030-5434-0008).* Washington did not live on the
property but did visit frequently. He leased the land to others and had rents collected by his local agents Lewis
Lemart (or Lemert) and Battaile Muse. Among the early renters were John Thompson and Enoch Ashby. In 1799,
Captain Benjamin Rust had rented part of this property from Washington, and it is believed that he built the earliest
stone section of the house that now stands on Flint Hill Farm.> In 1831, Lemuel Hutchison, who married Capt. Rust’s
daughter, acquired the property from Andrew Chunn’s heirs. By 1833, Hutchison had added a large, two-story, log
and frame Greek Revival-style addition to the existing stone dwelling (at present the rear of the house). The exterior
walls were clad with stucco. Other buildings on Flint Hill that date from the early to mid-eighteenth century include
the stone meat house and the log building behind the main dwelling. The latter may have served as a kitchen or as a
slave quarters and both buildings, along with part of another log dwelling on the farm and a stone springhouse, are
believed to have been built by Rust (around 1800).° For unknown reasons, Hutchison sold the farm in 1834 soon
after completing his house addition. In 1845, John D. Rawlings purchased the farm. Rawlings, an active farmer, and
his youngest son, John William, are credited with having built the tenant houses and many of the farm buildings still
extant on the property, which over the family’s 100-year ownership became known as “Rawlingsdale.” Between
1944 and 1945, the farm was purchased at auction and resold to J. Donald Richards, who renamed the farm “Eshton”
and engaged Virginia architect Thomas Tileston Waterman to remodel the interior of the house and to add the
projecting wings on the front.” Small alterations have been made to the house since then, but it largely retains its late
1940s appearance and the earlier sections are readily detectable.

Thomas Marshall, father of John Marshall who became Chief Justice of the U.S. Supreme Court, moved to Fauquier
around 1763 and lived in a modest dwelling north of Markham.® Marshall came to the area as a county surveyor and
also served as a burgess from the county. In 1772, Marshall acquired over 1,700 acres east of Markham where he
built his new home, Oak Hill (030-0044). In 1740, this land, located south of Goose Creek and east of Little Cobbler
Mountain in the southern end of the historic district, had been granted to Harry Turner and was later conveyed to
Thomas Turner, who sold it to Marshall.’ The house was a one-and-a-half-story, center-passage-plan frame dwelling
with tall exterior brick chimneys at either end. John Marshall lived at the house until 1783, when he married. In 1819,
John Marshall enlarged the house with the addition of a two-story, brick and stucco, front-gable wing on the north,
which he had built for his son Thomas. This wing features Greek Revival-style detailing with its recessed panels,
classical pilasters, modillions, lunette window, and pedimented, temple-like front. The smooth, white stucco finish
adds to the temple image typical of the style. In 1835, the two sections were joined by a hyphen. Many of the
outbuildings at Oak Hill date to the early nineteenth century and include a slave quarters, a kitchen, a smokehouse, a
springhouse, and a well. An 1840s schoolhouse, the Marshall family cemetery, and early-twentieth-century barns,
tenant houses, sheds, and silos are also part of the National Register-listed property. Woodside (030-0059; 030-5434-
0186) is another dwelling associated with the Marshall family that has it roots in the late eighteenth century. The
earliest part of the house (now the rear) was constructed around 1820. The house, built on part of the tract purchased
by Thomas Marshall from Thomas Turner, was greatly enlarged in the mid-nineteenth century.

In February 1772, John Rector petitioned the General Assembly for license to establish a town on land he had
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acquired near Goose Creek and Chattin’s Run. The land had been part of the 1741 land grant to Jacob and Tilman
Weaver. The Weavers, like Rector, had been original settlers at Germantown. Their 539-acre parcel laid between
Chattins” Run and Cromwell’s Run.!® The Assembly agreed to the convenience of the location along Bent Gap Road
(present-day Rectortown Road) and in 1772, Fauquier County’s first town, Maidstone (later, Rectortown) was
established. There are six resources within the village that date to the eighteenth century.* One of the oldest
resources in the village is the two-story log building known as Maidstone Ordinary (030- 0036; 030-5434-0235),
which is situated at the northwest corner of Rectortown Road and Crenshaw Road. In 1793, Daniel Floweree
obtained a license to run a tavern at this location and the establishment became known as Maidstone Ordinary. The
front section is of log construction covered with weatherboards; the building sits on a stone foundation and features
two large exterior-end stone chimneys. The gable roof is clad with wooden shingles. Two other log dwellings in
Rectortown—the Rector-Slack log house (030-0766; 030-5434-0232) and the Ashby house (030-5434-0236)—also
date from the late eighteenth century. The George Mann house (030-0232; 030-5434-218) located along Maidstone
Road, is a fine, two-story stone dwelling that was constructed around 1795. George Washington, who had had some
unpleasant land dealings with the Rector family, was not a supporter of the newly established village and his oft-
quoted letter of 1780 to his nephew Fielding Lewis, who had purchased land in the village, concisely states his disdain
for the area:

...I consent that you may get timber from off my land in Fauquier County to build a house on your lot in
Recter (sic) town. Having granted this, now let me ask you what your views were in purchasing a lot in
a place which, I presume, originated with and will end in two or three Gin Shops, which probably will
exist no Iolgger than they serve to ruin the proprietors and those who make the most frequent application
to them....

Despite Washington’s dire predictions, Rectortown thrived and became a nearby commercial center for the largely
rural region. Today, it retains much of its nineteenth-century integrity and continues to serve as a post office village.

Another crossroads community emerged during the early nineteenth century at Ash’s Store, which was located near
the intersection of present-day Oak Hill Road and Grove Lane (U.S. Route 55). The route of Oak Hill Road formerly
traveled northwest from the Marshall house of Oak Hill, past Woodside, and onto Maidstone Road. Today, only a
small section of Oak Hill Road is still open to travel. Ash’s Store also served as a post office and in 1808, the post
office’s name was changed to Oak Hill. In 1859, the post office was removed from Oak Hill to Piedmont Station
(Delaplane), but the community continued to operate with a general store, tannery, blacksmith’s shop, a nearby mill, a
brick kiln, and several residences.* Extant historic resources within Oak Hill include the former Smith Store (030-
5434-0189) and the former Dodson’s Blacksmith Shop (030-0590; 030-5434-0200), along with several early- to mid-
twentieth-century residences and their associated outbuildings. The Smith House (030-5434-0174), a two-story, late-
Victorian frame dwelling, was the early-twentieth-century home of E.C. Smith who operated the village store.

Another late-eighteenth-century dwelling located within the historic district is the circa 1787 house known as
Lakeland (030-5434-0070). The house, located on the west side of Atoka Road about one mile south of Atoka, is
believed to have been built for Daniel Morin, but was owned by the Lake family beginning in 1796.* The Lake
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family, including Isaac and his sons Ludwell and Thomas and his brother James, owned much of the land in the north-
central part of the district on either side of Atoka Road, much of which had been part of Landon Carter’s 1731 grant in
the area. This land, located in the heart of the historic district, is now encompassed within such farms as Atoka Farm
(030-0704; 030-5434-0069), Oak Grove Farm (030-5434-0072), and Merry Chase (030-0740; 030-5434-0074) and
continues to retain its rural character. Lakeland is a two-story, stone dwelling with large exterior-end chimneys. Like
many stone buildings in the area, Lakeland previously was clad with a stucco finish, as shown in a 1937 photograph
taken for the Virginia Historical Inventory of the Works Progress Administration (WPA)." This was a common
practice in this region that was rich with limestone.'® Another late-eighteenth-century stone building that was
formerly clad with stucco and that was built by Isaac and James Lake is the Lake School (030-0133; 030-5434-0158),
located on the east side of Atoka Road about one-half mile south of Atoka. A school is believed to have been on this
site about 1795, but the present building dates to around 1840. The school, now located within a wooded area, was
one of the “field schools” built in rural areas to accommodate children in the years prior to public education. The one-
story, gable-roofed building holds a single interior space. The entrance is through the south end and small window
openings are present on the sides. The school was privately supported until 1885 and then a public school, known as
Atoka School, met at the building until 1915."’

A number of the prominent dwellings within the historic district have at their core late-eighteenth-century or early-
nineteenth-century houses that were later enlarged and enhanced as the families grew and needed more room and as
the families experienced antebellum prosperity. As mentioned above, Woodside (030-0059; 030-5434-0186), located
at 9525 Maidstone Road, is an example of a modest eighteenth-century dwelling that was significantly enhanced by
the construction of a Greek Revival-style front around 1850. The house was a given to Anne Lewis Marshall,
granddaughter of Chief Justice John Marshall, as her part of the Oak Hill estate. Marshall married James Fitzgerald
Jones and the couple engaged William S. Sutton, a local carpenter and master builder, and Luke Woodward, a well-
known local mason, to modify the house.*® The original, rear section of the house with its two large exterior
chimneys was raised from one-and-a-half stories to two stories and was clad with brick. The two-story brick front,
connected to the rear by a two-story hyphen, reflects popular Greek Revival detailing with its wide wooden cornice
and full-height brick pilasters that separate the three bays of the facade. The recessed doorway, holding a double-leaf
entrance door, is emphasized by an elaborate shouldered architrave surround and multi-paned sidelights and transom.
Large six-over-three-over-six, triple-sash windows flank the entrance, while windows on the second floor are six-
over-six double sash. The front section of the house is covered by a low-pitched, metal-clad hipped roof pierced by
two slender interior brick chimneys. In addition to the brick pilasters, the fine brickwork includes the five-course,
American-bond pattern of the exterior walls and jack arches above the first-floor window openings. The interior of
this house retains a high level of integrity as well. Woodside also contains a fine collection of log outbuildings dating
to the early nineteenth century, which enhances the historical setting and context of the dwelling.

Greendale (030-0741; 030-5434-0119), located on Five Points Road, is another dwelling with an earlier core. The
oldest section of the house is the one-and-a-half-story, one-room-deep log section at the southern (rear) end of the
house, which was probably built in the 1790s. The hewn members are joined with diamond notches. A large stone
chimney, with a later brick stack, is located on the southwest end of the log structure. Alterations to the log section of
the house, which probably date to the early twentieth century, include the construction of the gable-roofed dormer and
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the addition of the two-story, frame section on the southeast that is set on a stone foundation and is clad in part with
brick laid in a six-course American-bond pattern. About 1820, a two-story brick (five-course American) dwelling was
built north of the log building. This three-bay block holds a centrally located entrance that is flanked by window
openings. While original windows appear to have been nine-over-nine wooden sash, wooden casements were installed
on the house sometime in the early 1900s. A two-story, brick hyphen, now clad with weatherboards, was built around
1920 and connects the brick section with the log section.'® While the evolution of this dwelling is complex, it is an
interesting building and previous survey indicates that the interior woodwork is very fine. The Greendale farm was
owned by Isaac Cundiff beginning in 1771 and had been part of a larger tract owned by Charles Burgess, who lived in
Lancaster County but who had received several grants in the Fauquier area during the early 1730s. At the beginning
of the nineteenth century, the property was purchased by James Kincheloe and remained in the Kincheloe family until
the beginning of the twentieth century. The two-story brick dwelling most likely was constructed by James Kincheloe
and his wife Elizabeth. Brandt Kincheloe, who became the owner of the farm in 1846, referred to the property as
"Greendale."? In the late twentieth century, the property passed through several owners. Modifications assumed to
have been made around the 1920s would have been completed during Ethel Moore Anderson's ownership (1926-
1955). While the farm formerly encompassed several hundred acres, it is now only a five-acre parcel, but the house
and property retain good overall integrity and the evolution of the house is easily seen through its exterior appearance.
The Kincheloe cemetery now is located on the farm adjacent to the south (30-5434-122).

The earliest section of the main dwelling at Kelvedon Farm (030-0034; 030-5434-0079) was built around 1810 by
William Rector, who owned 298 acres on Lick Branch (the small stream that runs west behind the house). The house
remained in the Rector family until the late nineteenth century, when it was conveyed to Luke Woodward, who in turn
conveyed the property to his daughter Sallie Dorrell.?* In the early twentieth century, the property was owned by
John Crosby Butler, a gentleman farmer and president of the Upperville Colt and Horse Show (1941-1943). The
oldest section of the house is the two-story, three-bay, stone block with exterior stone chimneys on either end. The
centrally located entrance is flanked by nine-over-nine wooden sash windows with three six-over-six windows on the
second-floor level. A one-and-a-half-story, three-bay ell was added to the west side (rear) of the house in the mid-
nineteenth century. In the 1920s, the rear ell was enlarged and the three-bay, north-end wing was added and several
of the outbuildings were constructed. Several outbuildings date to the early nineteenth century including the stone
springhouse and meat house. The cemetery associated with Kelvedon is the final resting place of former owners of
Kelvedon, William Rector (1769-1834) and Luke Woodward (1809-1885). Kelvedon retains a very high level of
exterior integrity and the collection of nineteenth- and twentieth-century outbuildings--including stables and tenant
houses--as well as the presence of the family cemetery, add to the historical context of this still-active horse farm.

The property currently known as Smitten Farm (030-0635; 030-5434-0161) historically has been known as Benvenue
and the Old Kincheloe Place. The front part of the main dwelling is believed to have been constructed around 1824 on
335 acres then owned by John P. Duval. Enoch Glascock purchased the farm in 1849 and just as the Civil War began,
Glascock sold it to Samuel Tebbs. At that time, the farm was referred to as “Benvenue,” no doubt for its grand vistas
from the house site. John Kincheloe purchased the farm in 1892, and it remained in the Kincheloe family until 1929

when John Phipps purchased it. Phipps soon sold the land to Winston Guest, who held the farm for 10 years until he

sold it to Margaret Paddock, who remained the owner into the late twentieth century.?? The present farm encompasses
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roughly 600 acres and is an active horse and beef cattle farm. The two-story, five-bay, Federal-style dwelling is clad
with stucco with the front section believed to be of stone construction (the stone foundation is visible). Interior
stucco-clad chimneys are present on either end of the house. The facade (south elevation) holds a centrally located
entrance that is flanked by tall six-over-six, wood-sash windows. A round-top transom is set above the entrance door
and the bay is detailed with an elaborate pedimented aedicule surround. Other classical elements include the
modillion blocks along the cornice line of the house. A two-story, gable-roofed ell, probably constructed in the late
nineteenth century, projects from the north end of the house. Around 1940, a one-story, gable-roofed wing was added
to the west end of the house. Only the nearby kitchen and smokehouse appear to date from the early nineteenth
century. The remainder of the outbuildings on the farm date from the early to late twentieth century and reflect the
large cattle and horse operations that have been conducted there. The two gambrel-roofed, concrete block dairy barns
on the farm, probably built in the mid-twentieth century, have been converted for use as stables, yet they retain their
appearance as dairy barns with the low eaves of the gambrel roof, the very large metal ventilators along the roof
ridgeline, and the numerous window openings along the sides. A milk house is attached to the larger of the two barns.
A large complex of barns and outbuildings associated with the cattle production is located near the center of the farm.
More recent additions (circa 1985) to the farm include the large training barn located on the west end of the farm and
the nearby galloping pavilion.

Shirland Hall (030-0706; 030-5434-0059), located on the north side of U.S. Route 50 near the village of Atoka, is
composed of two individual houses that were built abutting one another. The earliest section of the house is the two-
story, three-bay brick section on the eastern end of the present dwelling. The brick is laid in a Flemish-bond pattern
on the front (south elevation) and a three-course, American-bond pattern on the sides and rear, indicating that
construction likely took place during the first two decades of the nineteenth century. In 1833, the two-story, three-bay
stone addition, which abuts the brick section on the west, was constructed. Another two-story stone wing, set recessed
from the front and lower than the rest of the house, was added to the west end of the house in 1850. The house was
previously clad with stucco and scored in an effort to unify its exterior appearance. This was a common practice in the
area and an extant example is seen on the nearby house at Welbourne, the front section of which dates to about 1820
(053-0120).% At present, a shed-roofed porch spans all six front bays at Shirland Hall, which still holds two separate
entrances. Additions have been constructed to the west and rear, but the historical appearance of the house is intact.
There is a contemporaneous stone springhouse on the property west of the house and an early-twentieth-century bank
barn behind the house. The earliest part of the house is believed to have been constructed by Joshua Fletcher, who
died in 1811, and was enlarged by his son William Fletcher, who obtained all rights to house and farm from his
brothers between 1820 and 1822. The farm remained in the Fletcher family until the early twentieth century. Today,
the farm and buildings are well-maintained and a vineyard has been planted on the west side of the farm.

The two-story, brick dwelling at Glenmore (030-0025; 030-5434-0049), located on the east side of Crenshaw Road,
was built circa 1818 by John Glascock. The Federal-style dwelling consists of a three-bay center section that is
covered by a metal-clad, side-facing gable roof. The brick is laid in a Flemish-bond pattern on the front (west
elevation) and in a five-course, American-bond pattern on all other sides. The handsome brickwork also includes a
mousetooth cornice on the east and west sides. Exterior brick chimneys are located on either end of this section, and
the house is set on an English basement somewhat banked into the hill on the west side. The three-bay front (west)
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features a centrally located entrance with a transom above that is flanked by nine-over-six, wood-sash windows with
brick jack arches above. The openings on the second-floor level hold six-over-six, wood-sash windows with stone
lintels. The one-and-a-half-story, brick wing on the north end was constructed in 1949. Other additions were
constructed to the south end of the house in the late twentieth century. Historic outbuildings on the property include a
log meat house, a frame corncrib, and a stone and frame bank barn. Twentieth-century tenant dwellings, a hay and
cattle barn, and a tile silo are also part of the farm complex.

Several other dwellings within the district share the same architectural evolution as those mentioned above. The
house at Stoneleigh (030-0904; 030-5434-0080) is a two-story, three-bay stone dwelling that sits on the south side of
U.S. Route 50 just east of Shirland Hall. The house was constructed in 1830 by Isaac Gibson as attested to by the
inscription “I Gibson 1830” in one of the stones on the east-end chimney. The house began as a one-and-a-half-story
dwelling but was raised to two stories soon after, and then was added to in the early twentieth century. Only the stone
springhouse on the property dates from the same period as the house. The main dwelling at Chilly Bleak (030-0569;
030-5434-0172), located off of Frogtown Road in the southeastern part of the historic district, is also believed to have
been constructed in the first part of the nineteenth century. Two incised stones are located in the eastern wall of the
house—one bearing the date “1729” and the other bearing the date “1821.” No part of the house appears to date from
the early eighteenth century, but the eastern three bays most likely date from 1820. The property was purchased in
1812 by Andrew and Sophia Woolf, both of whom are buried in the cemetery on the farm. The Woolfs are believed
to have had the original house built and in 1840 two additional bays were added to the west end of the house.?* In the
1940s, George and Ethel Garrett were the owners and had a frame servants’ wing and a rear porch added to the house.
Tenant dwellings and stables were also constructed on the farm at that time. These additions are said to have been
designed by Washington, D.C.-based architect George Howe with construction completed by W.F. and W.J. Hanback
of Warrenton.? Glanville (030-0210; 030-5434-0003), located in the southern section of the historic district off of
U.S. Route 50, is a handsome, two-story stone dwelling that was begun as a traditional side-passage-plan house
around 1820. The handsome stonework includes an interior chimney on the south end and large stones used at the
corners as quoins. A two-story, cross-gabled wing was added to the north end of the house at the turn of the twentieth
century. While the facade was clad with the stone to match the original section of the house, the wing is of frame
construction and is clad with weatherboards on the sides and rear. A fine stone outbuilding is also on the property and
may have served as a dairy or icehouse. A stone foundation is located near the building and may be the remains of the
meat house mentioned in the 1937 WPA survey report on the property.?® The farm was part of the larger Monterey
tract that was divided among the heirs of Col. Thomas Harrison, who had acquired part of James Ball’s 1732 2,000-
acre grant. The Harrison and Rector families (who intermarried) maintained ownership of the farm into the mid-
twentieth century, except for a few years at the end of the nineteenth century.

Not all of the dwellings erected during the first part of the nineteenth century were of such fine construction and size
as those mentioned above. As noted, a few former slave dwellings are still extant in the district and are typically one-
to one-and-a-half-story buildings of log or frame construction, such as the one at Oak Hill. Modest vernacular
examples of tenant dwellings and small farmer dwellings are included within the district such as circa 1810 Glenmore
Log Tenant House (also known as the Jeffries House) (030-0568; 030-5434-0025) on Rectortown Road, which is a
two-story, three-bay-wide, that is now clad with stucco. Earlier interior survey indicated that the roof framing is of
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mortise-and-tenon construction with pegging with Roman numerals visible on the rafters. The one-story, gable-roofed
rear ell, probably built in the early twentieth century, holds a large stone chimney at the northeast end. Earlier survey
photos indicate that this chimney had been stucco-clad. The circa 1810 “Crooked House” on Crenshaw Road (030-
0593; 030-5434-0048) has been added to, but its original log section has been left intact. Located on the north end of
the house, the log dwelling is two-and-a-half stories with a one-story stone section across the front (west elevation).
The interior was originally a hall-parlor plan but has been modified. Log dwellings dating from the early to mid-
nineteenth century are also located on Flint Hill Farm (030-0564; 030-5434-0008). These resources are tangible relics
that connect the area to its earliest European settlers and are examples of the modest dwellings built of local materials
that dotted the landscape throughout the late eighteenth and early nineteenth centuries.

While Caleb Rector’s stone house was erected in the 1830s, the small enclave of Atoka, located about five miles north
of Rectortown, was not officially named until the 1890s when the post office name was changed from Rector’s Cross
Roads. A post office had been located at the crossroads beginning 1838 when Elijah M. Anderson was postmaster.
The post office was closed in 1853 but reopened in 1860.% Located at the intersection of the Ashby Gap Turnpike
(U.S. Route 50) and the road south to Rectortown (Atoka Road), the Caleb Rector house is visually prominent within
the hamlet given its commanding presence above the road grade. The two-and-a-half-story dwelling is three bays
wide and is set on a split-level stone basement. The house lot is enclosed by a stone wall. The springhouse
historically associated with the house, and likely built at the same time, is located across Rector’s Lane, the former
route of U.S. 55 that was changed in 1957 when the northern bypass was constructed. Two log dwellings from the
first half of the nineteenth century, two commercial buildings, including the still-active 1893 Rector's Store and a
former gas station constructed in 1927, and a late-nineteenth-century frame dwelling and its associated outbuildings
complete the architectural ensemble that makes up this quaint hamlet that retains its nineteenth-century charm. Atoka
remains a very popular and active crossroads given the presence of the store; the crossroads also acts as the northern
“gateway” into the heart of the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District and provides a transition from the high-speed
U.S. Route 55 to the more bucolic Atoka Road.

While stores and other enterprises developed within commercial centers of area villages and crossroads communities,
the agriculturally related industry of milling—both grist and saw mills—was rapidly developing at sites along the
strong flowing creeks in the area. Some of the mills that developed in the late eighteenth century (including Woolf’s
Mill along Goose Creek) are no longer extant, but early- and mid-nineteenth century mills are represented within the
district by the circa 1800 Hatcher’s Mill (also known as Chinn’s Mill, 030-0659; 030-5434-0065) on Cromwell’s Run,
which has been listed individually on the VLR and NRHP.?® The 50-acre property is striking for its situation on the
south side of U.S. Route 50 along the east side of Cromwell’s Run with tall bluffs overlooking the creek on the east
and west sides. The flat land around the mill is somewhat wooded and the mill building is banked into the hill on the
south side. A mill may have been operated at this site as early as 1768 when county minute books record that Charles
Chinn received permission to erect a water mill on Cromwell’s Run. The Hatcher brothers obtained ownership of the
mill in 1807. The mill, which operated until around 1915, is a three-level building that is banked into the hill on the
south side. The lower two levels of the mill are of stone construction, while the upper level and the east-end addition
are of frame construction clad with board-and-batten siding. The entrance into the mill is through this eastern
addition on the southern, banked side. Openings in the stone exterior wall on the north side indicate where the mill
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wheel was formerly located. Associated buildings still on the property include a cooper’s house, the miller’s house, a
larger owner’s house, and a gatekeeper’s house. The property was transformed into a picturesque country estate in the
1920s by John Phipps, who restored and enhanced many of the buildings on the site.

Milan Mill (030-5434-0026), located along Goose Creek on the south side of Rectortown Road, is another industrial
resource within the district and may have operated as early as 1764 when George Lamkin made application to the
county government to build a mill on his property on the side of Goose Creek. While part of the mill may date to that
period, it is likely that the majority of this building was built in the mid- to late nineteenth century. Milan Mill
produced corn meal, feed, and whole wheat flour as well as cracked corn. The Glascocks owned the farm for many
years, and it was one of the last operating mills in Fauquier County, closing in December 1952.% In the late twentieth
century, the farm and mill were purchased by Paul Mellon. The well-maintained mill is of stone construction and is
covered by a gambrel roof of standing-seam metal with the gable ends clad in weatherboard. The side-facing gable
wing, which extends to the north, is clad with board-and-batten siding and is set on a stone foundation. Machinery
appears to survive on the lower level of the mill. A small stream, a tributary of Goose Creek, runs behind (west of)
the mill and some of the wheel mechanisms are extant. The presence of the two-story frame miller’s house, located at
the top of the hill north of the mill, enhances the historical context of the resource. The former route of Rectortown
Road, now used as a farm road, ran directly by the mill (rather than north of the house as it does now) and then
crossed Goose Creek. The stone piers of the old bridge are still extant within the stream of the creek, south of the
present Rectortown Road bridge.

Another industrial and transportation boost to the area was the arrival of the Manassas Gap Railroad in 1852. The
railroad received a charter from the Virginia General Assembly in 1850 and was intended to link Strasburg in the
Shenandoah Valley with markets in the east. As an economical decision, the Manassas Gap line joined with the
Orange and Alexandria Railroad at Manassas Junction and traveled on to the port of Alexandria. The areas selected
along the rail line for depot stops saw much increase in economic activity in Fauquier; these towns included
Markham, Piedmont Station (Delaplane), Rectortown, Marshall, and The Plains. At Rectortown, the line approached
from the west along the run of Goose Creek before heading south at the mouth of Chattin’s Run, from which it ran
towards Marshall (Salem) and east to The Plains. Alfred Rector, a shareholder in the railroad, gave the railroad land in
Rectortown that allowed the tracks to pass directly by his circa 1835 store.®® The arrival of the railroad spurred more
commercial growth, especially along the railroad track, and Rector’s store was enlarged to include a post office.
Rector’s Store and Warehouse (030-5434-0211), which are located on the north side of the railroad tracks, are still
extant reminders of the flourishing activity along the rail line during the mid-nineteenth century. The line and the
resources would soon be used for a very different purpose other than commerce once the Civil War broke out.

The Civil War brought an end to the antebellum prosperity experienced within the area of the historic district. Several
skirmish sites and strategic military sites are located throughout the district and still retain integrity with regard to
setting and context. The area also saw considerable troop movements by both military groups. The region was part
Confederate Col. John S. Mosby’s “confederacy,” which included portions of Fauquier, Loudoun, and Prince William
counties and was patrolled by the band of “Rangers” who followed him (officially known as Company A, 43"
Battalion Virginia Cavalry). Itis at the Caleb Rector House at Rector’s Cross Roads (Atoka) that Mosby first
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established his Rangers in June 1863 and several houses in the district were used by Mosby and his men during the
war as “safehouses.”! In July 1861, trains boarded by Confederate troops at Piedmont Station (Delaplane) passed
through the historic district as they headed for the Battle of First Manassas. This was the first time in history that
trains were used to transport soldiers to battle.*? In October 1862, Mosby moved his two mountain howitzer guns to
the ridge of the 725-foot-high knoll of Negro Mountain, which overlooks Rectortown to the north, in an effort to stop
Union forces that were rebuilding the railroad line to continue the conveyance of troops and supplies.®

Rectortown played an important role in the war, as well, and both Union and Confederate troops occupied and
traveled through the village given its role as a supply depot and a crossroads. Troops on both sides were variously
engaged in destroying and rebuilding the rail tracks that ran through the valley. Mosby’s men often met in the town
or nearby dwellings to plan their forays into the surrounding territory. The most notable event, however, occurred on
November 7, 1862 when Union Gen. George McClellan, encamped with his troops near the house known as
Maidstone (030-0834; 030-5434-0217), received notice that he was being relieved of his command and was to be
replaced by Gen. Ambrose Burnside. This event is described on the Civil War Trails marker located at Lost Corner
Road near the former Rector’s Warehouse. Rectortown was also the site of Mosby’s infamous “lottery” held in
November 1864, which doomed seven Union soldiers to death in retaliation to Union General Sheridan’s blanket edict
that any of Mosby’s men who were captured should be executed.*

Five Points, the locus where Five Points Road, Atoka Road, and Old Carters Mill Road come together, was the site of
the January 1, 1865 skirmish between 32 of Mosby’s troops and about 80 Union troops en route to Middleburg. The
Confederates were victorious in the skirmish killing four, wounding 10 or 12, and capturing 40, as well as gathering
abandoned supplies and horses.®

In June 1863, Confederate Gen. J.E.B. Stuart’s forces fought a delaying tactic against Union General Pleasanton’s
troops along the Ashby Gap Turnpike (U.S. Route 50) and at the stone bridge across Goose Creek (on the Loudoun
County line). Views from roadways and farms in the area still convey the strategic advantages of troop positions in
those locales.

After the war, the area languished in recovering its agricultural prosperity of the pre-war era. Many residents were
forced to sell farmland that they could not maintain or financially retain. Little construction appears to have occurred
in the area of the historic district until about 1880. About 25 resources within the village of Rectortown were
constructed between 1880 and 1910 including the Rectortown School (030-0208; 030-5434-0240) that was built in
1880 for white students, which is now a dwelling. Still extant is the original first-floor, two-room brick section and the
second-story fame section that was added as an auditorium circa 1906 and the side one-story wing, built circa 1920. The
school closed in the mid-1950s and the building was then converted to its current use.*® The Rectortown Methodist
Church (030-5155-0030; 030-5434-0239), a gable-end building with a square bell tower, was built in 1894 and the
Mount Olive Baptist Church (030-5346; 030-5434-0248) was built in 1911 as a Gothic Revival-style building that
replaced an earlier church. Dwellings within the district that date to this period tend to follow well-established
vernacular forms like the hall-parlor plan and the I-house, and have limited exterior architectural detailing (e.g., 030-5434-
0220, -0224, and -0255).
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Dwellings outside of the village that date to this period also are of traditional vernacular forms with limited architectural
detailing, although a few exhibit some Victorian-era detailing along the porches and eaves. Some late-nineteenth-century
construction focused on enlarging extant dwellings and “modernizing” their appearances. Maizemoor (030-0669; 030-
5434-0160) is an impressive two-story stone dwelling located in the southeastern part of the historic district. While
part of the house, or another house, was on the property by 1850, the Italianate detailing including the deeply molded
and rounded window and door surrounds on the interior, as well as the modillions and classical portico on the
exterior, appear to date from an 1883 remodeling completed by the Whiting family who owned it until 1946.%" In the
1940s, Nashville-based architect Emmons H. Woolwine assisted with a remodeling of the house that included the
removal of the exterior stucco and the addition of a two-story stone wing on the east end. The barns, sheds, and tile
silo associated with Maizemoor appear to date from the early twentieth century.

The ubiquitous I-house also is well-represented within the historic district. An example is the dwelling at 4423 Grove
Lane (030-5324; 030-5434-0001). This two-story, five-bay, frame I-house is covered by a side-facing gable roof with
a central-front gable; details include a plain frieze board, pedimented gable ends, and pointed-arched attic-level
windows. The house is clad with novelty siding and is set on a stone foundation. The two-level front porch holds five
bays on the first floor and one bay on the second-floor level and is accessed on each level by a centrally located door.
The porch supports are Tuscan columns and the porch roof features a central gable with flared eaves on the second
floor. The two-story rear ell is similar in detailing to the front of the house.

Another typical farmhouse of the late-nineteenth century is the dwelling at Sunnyside on Lost Corner Road (030-
5348; 030-5434-0018). This cross-gable-roofed dwelling is L-shaped in plan and features a three-bay porch with
chamfered post supports across the front of the side wing. Large exterior stone chimneys are located on either end of
the house. The house has been clad with stucco but retains its overall historic appearance and form. The presence of
late-nineteenth- and early-twentieth-century farm buildings, including an unusual clipped-gable-roofed crib and a
windmill, enhances the historic context of the farm. Two other dwellings located on Lost Corner Road also exhibit
Victorian-era detailing added to an earlier dwelling. Locust Grove (030-0860; 030-5434-0020) was constructed in
phases with the northern end bays built first (circa 1850) and the three southern bays added later (circa 1880). The
front of the house is detailed with a three-bay porch with square column supports and decorative sawn brackets and
three-sided bay windows flanking the centrally located entrance. A wooden bargeboard cut in a sawtooth pattern
encircles the house. Mount Seclusion (030-0859; 030-5434-0023) is a large working farm that consists of an 1840s
main dwelling and numerous late-nineteenth- and early-twentieth-century tenant dwellings and farm buildings. The
porch of the main dwelling reflects late Victorian-era detailing with its stout square wooden columns, sawn brackets,
and sawn balusters. The tenant dwellings on Patrickswell (030-5434-0082) date from the late nineteenth to early
twentieth centuries and also exhibit Victorian-era porch details.

One of the benefits of the end of the war was the increased freedoms for the African-American population in the area.

With the end of hostilities, African Americans endeavored to build communities of their own focused around homes,
churches, and schools. Many became property owners within the area south of Rectortown known as Frogtown. The
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earliest extant dwelling located within the area is the Old Grant House (030-5434-0148). According to Frogtown
resident Thomas Grant, this was his family’s home place where Sister Julia Grant, a freed slave, held weekly prayer
meetings in the late 1860s. These meetings gave rise to the organization of Mt. Olive Baptist Church, which still
thrives in Rectortown.® African Americans also established home sites on Fortune Mountain, also known as Seaton
Mountain. Both names appear to derive from the ownership of families by these names. The Colston House (030-
5434-0198) dates to the first decade of the twentieth century and appears to be the oldest house on Fortune Mountain.
This one-and-a-half-story vernacular dwelling consists of a front frame section that is clad with board-and-batten
siding and is set on a stacked stone foundation. The entrance is located off of the shed-roofed porch located on the
southeast side. A one-and-a-half-story, stucco-clad, cross-gable-roofed wing projects from the rear of the frame
section and is banked into the hillside on the north side. Although of modern date (1986), there is also a family
cemetery on the property.

In 1886, the Fauquier County School Board purchased land from Peter King and his wife to establish a school for
black students in the area. The 1936 Survey of Schools for the county identifies “Cherry Hill” as this school. The
survey and accompanying photograph indicate that the school, built in 1898, was a frame building clad with
weatherboards and set on a stone foundation. Three six-over-six wood sash windows were present on each side of the
school and the single-leaf entrance was located in the gable end. The interior was finished with pine flooring and
plastered ceilings. This school, which is identified on the 1914 map of the county as “School No. 12,” served black
students into the early twentieth century. In 1959, the school and the one-half-acre lot it was on were sold to Guy and
Marcia Jackson.*® The School Board purchased a nearby parcel, located on the southwest side of Rectortown Road,
and constructed the Northwestern Elementary School (030-5434-0137), designed by Warrenton-based architect
Washington Reed Jr. This brick school was of a modern design with a flat roof and groupings of large window
openings. The building was renovated and added to in the late twentieth century and continues to be a center of
vibrant activity within the community. The school is noted as an important institution within the local African-
American community, and its National Register status should be revisited when the building has reached historical
age. In 2002, the school was renamed Claude Thompson Elementary School to honor the African-American principal
who had guided the community-based school from 1973 to 2001. *°

Transportation routes within the historic district were not altered much during the early twentieth century and largely
reflect colonial-era routes. Throughout the early twentieth century, roadways tended to remain unpaved and narrow.
Two bridges constructed within the district during this time are notable as concrete types built by the Luten Bridge
Company of York, Pennsylvania. Both one-lane bridges are located along Crenshaw Road on the eastern edge of the
historic district. The smaller of the two is Bridge #6034, which crosses the stream locally known as Woolf’s Branch.
It was constructed around 1915 and features a single-span with a segmental barrel arch that supports five-panel
parapet wings or side walls. The date plaque is missing from the bridge (east side), but a contributors’ plaque is
located on the west side. The larger bridge, Bridge #5146 which spans Goose Creek near the polo field, was built in
1919 and consists of two segmentally arched supports that carry six-panel, parapet side walls. The bridge walls curve
slightly with the roadway. Concrete buttresses also support the bridge walls at the north and south ends. The bridge is
a picturesque amenity within the historic district and both bridges are notable as survivors of the early twentieth
century. Given that Crenshaw Road is a lightly traveled, unpaved roadway, these bridges have not been replaced by
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wider, two-lane bridges and help to retain the historical appearance of this bucolic road as it meanders along the run
of Goose Creek.

Early-twentieth-century development in the district is generally of two types. There are individual dwellings that
reflect traditional vernacular forms and nationally popular styles, such as Craftsman-style bungalows [e.g., 3724
Rectortown Road (030-5434-0176), built in 1929], as well as early-twentieth-century additions to and renovations of
extant houses. The latter was largely the result of a group of wealthy northerners who began to move into the area
during the first decades of the twentieth century drawn largely by low land prices and the vast open space that
provided good territory for their favorite pastime of foxhunting and also the raising of blooded horses. The proximity
of the area to Washington, D.C. and its accessibility by rail lines also added to the lure of the area. Examples of
existing farms and houses that were modified in the early twentieth century include the previously discussed
properties at Hatcher’s Mill, Rockburn, Kelvedon, and Chilly Bleak, as well as at the farms of Merry Chase (030-
0740; 030-5434-0074) and Glen Welby (030-0914; 030-5434-0163). Houses were enlarged by the construction of
rear ells and side wings and properties were enhanced by the construction of barns, stables, and other outbuildings.
Stables from the early twentieth century are located at all of the above-mentioned properties, indicating the ubiquitous
nature of riding and hunting horses. The swimming pool at the Hatcher’s Mill property, installed by John Phipps in
1924, is one of the earliest in the area and was consciously designed “to blend with the gently sloping, stony
landscape above Cromwell’s Run.”** The re-establishment of these properties as major working farms, equestrian
estates, or modestly named “hunting boxes,” often with hundreds of acres under single ownership, contributed to the
retention of the rural character of the area and ensured that the historic homes did not succumb to decay or
deterioration. Instead of constructing new, modern dwellings, these newly arrived residents transformed these farms
into picturesque, but functional estates.

Wexford (030-0062; 030-5434-0061), while a modest home is included in the historic district as a contributing
resource due to its association with President and Mrs. John F. Kennedy, who built the house in 1963. The one-story,
stucco-clad dwelling is located on Hatcher’s Mill Road on a rocky and wooded outcrop on top of a hill facing west
towards the Blue Ridge Mountains. The house is covered by a side-facing gable roof of wooden shingles with gable-
roofed ells projecting from the rear. Tall interior stucco-clad chimneys pierce the roof. The house is said to have
been designed so that each bedroom had exterior access via a pair of French doors, thus allowing visitors to come and
go without having to come through the main living areas. Mrs. Kennedy, an avid foxhunter who was a frequent
participant with the Orange County Hunt, is credited with the design, which is believed to have been executed by a
Winchester-based architect, Keith Williams.* The property is enhanced by stone retaining walls and slate patios, and
also includes a garage and a stable.

Several of the estates within the district include modern (less than 50 years old) horse facilities that reflect the on-
going commitment to the raising of horses for riding, racing, and hunting. The primary resource at Kinross (030-
0753; 030-5434-0128) is the circa 1850 brick Federal-style dwelling. In the late twentieth century, the farm began to
develop into one of the equine showplaces in the area. The 500-acre farm is now a thoroughbred training facility with
a 20-stall racing barn, an indoor arena, a Polyturf (synthetic grass) track, and National fences (52 inches in height) for
steeplechase training. The state-of-the-art racing barn (stable), constructed around 2001, features a center aisle with
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stalls opening both to the exterior and the interior.*> One-and-a-half-story stall wings project from either side of the
centrally located two-story, cross-gable-roofed wing. Louvered cupolas are located along the roof ridgeline. The
facility includes wash stalls, a feed room with a tack room, a laundry room, and an office. The circa 2001 indoor
riding arena, covered by a gable-on-hip roof with rounded ends, is also impressive for its size and for the facilities it
holds, which allows training even in inclement weather. The farm now comprises about 500 acres and contains over
20 buildings including stables, run-in shelters, tenant dwellings, paddocks, a turf galloping strip, and steeplechase
courses. A small vineyard is also operated on the farm.

Large racing barns built in the late twentieth century are also located on Smitten Farm (030-0635; 03-5434-0161) and
on Patrickswell (030-5434-0082), both also large-acreage farms with large building complexes on each farm. At
Smitten Farm, the large stable (circa 1985) is covered by a broad hipped roof with rounded ends and a cross-gable
wing on the east side, which holds offices. Large, paired, sliding doors are located at the corners of the barn and on
the west side. A continuous row of eight-over-eight sash windows encircle the barn on all sides for ventilation. The
interior features continuous side aisles and a centrally located cross aisle. Box stalls are located at the center of the
barn and a hay loft is located above. The farm boards about sixty thoroughbred racing horses at present. Foals are
raised and trained at the farm and then sent to another farm for advanced training. The early- to mid-twentieth-century
barn complex located at the center of the farm continues to be used in its on-going beef cattle operations composed of
about 200 head of cattle.**

At Patrickswell, which contains barns and tenant houses formerly associated with an early-twentieth-century cattle
farm, the circa 1984 stable is covered by a gable-on-hip roof with rounded ends and cross-gables at the ends and sides.
Three louvered dormers are located along the roof ridgeline. The barn is clad with stucco with three-pane metal
awning windows around the entire building. The interior features a central aisle and side aisles and holds about 25
stalls. The primary resource at Stoneleigh (030-0904; 030-5434-0080) is the 1830, two-story stone dwelling. The
circa 1930 stable was enlarged with the construction of two side wings on the north and south, each holding about 16
stalls each. The circa 2000 indoor riding/show barn located on the eastern edge of the property is covered by a metal-
clad hipped roof with flared ends. Four louvered cupolas are located along the roof ridgeline. The oval-shaped
building holds sliding, multi-paned windows around the sides with sliding doors at the north and south.

Although not individually recorded, the numerous stone fences that are still extant on the landscape are reminders of
early land divisions, as well as early land use patterns. The walls were constructed using stones found in the fields,
which also provided building materials for houses and outbuildings. Aesthetically, the walls are examples of early
craftsmanship in the valley. Practically, the walls illustrate land divisions and the efficient use of available materials.
The stone walls, as well as the use of stone for house foundations and outbuildings, tie the man-made elements in the
valley to the natural landscape, being at once on the place and of the place. Stone walls and board fences throughout
the district are often punctuated with barways and jumps that are post and rail and with paneled coops to facilitate
foxhunting. The presence of “Segregation Lane,” which was drawn in 1906 and defines the hunting territories of the
Orange County Hunt and the Piedmont Fox Hounds, is another direct link to the history of the recreational use of the
land within the historic district. The line runs southwest from Route 50 to Carters Mill Road (Route 715) on the west
side of Cromwell’s Run and in part follows the unpaved road known as Hatcher’s Mill Road.
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As noted in the above descriptions, many of the historical properties contain an associated family cemetery. Among
the family cemeteries recorded in the district are the Lake cemetery at Oak Grove Farm (030-5434-0073); the
Glascock cemetery at Rockburn (030-0214; 030-5434-0050); the Marshall cemetery at Oak Hill (030-0044; 030-
5434-0006); the Kincheloe cemetery (030-5434-0121) historically associated with Greendale Farm; the Woodward
cemetery at Kelvedon (030-0034; 030-5434-0079); the Kortland cemetery at Sunnyside (030-5348; 030-5434-0018);
and the Woolf family cemetery at Chilly Bleak (030-0569; 030-5434-0172). Several small cemeteries associated with
African-American families are located in Frogtown and in the Fortune Mountain area and include the Grant-Chloe
cemetery (030-5434-0264); the Odd Fellows Cemetery (030-54340192); the Smith Cemetery (030-5434-0185); and
the Colston Cemetery (030-5434-0198). The late-twentieth-century family cemetery at Sunnyside on Lost Corner
Road (030-5348; 030-5434-0018), which holds two graves for the Kortland family, indicates that burials at family
farms continues into the present day. The network of roadways within the historic district also adds to its character.
While several of the roadways within the district are primary transportation routes that carry a significant amount of
traffic (e.g., Rectortown Road, Atoka Road, and U.S. Routes 50 and 55), the interior network of roadways within the
district is notable as a historic pattern that developed through necessity and as the area was populated. As noted
above, some roadways were created as mills were built and farmers needed access to them, while others connects
farm-to-farm. Many of these narrow interior roadways (including Old Carters Mill Road, Five Points Road, and
Crenshaw Road) remain unpaved, carry little traffic, and retain their historical appearance—often lined by stands of
woods or stone walls.

It is the well-preserved landscape that qualifies this area as a rural historic district. Enhanced by the buildings and
resources noted above, the landscape is characterized by gently rolling fields, stands of woods, and active farmland.
The area is visually framed by the Blue Ridge Mountains to the west and the Bull Run Mountains to the east. The
strong waterways of Goose Creek and Cromwell’s Run physically define the area on the east and west and add to the
bucolic nature of the district. Wildlife abounds in the area given the natural resources of water, woods, and
undeveloped land. The center of the historic district, focused along the north-to-south route of Atoka Road, is a series
of large acreage farms that abut each other, resulting in a largely contiguous span of unspoiled terrain. While a still-
active, growing, and living agricultural area, newly constructed agricultural buildings are constructed in a way that
generally enhances the existing landscape and historical architectural resources and represents the vibrant nature of
these farms.
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CROMWELL’S RUN RURAL HISTORIC DISTRICT INVENTORY

The following is a list of resources located within the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District boundaries. The resources are listed
alphabetically by road and chronologically by address number. VDHR ID numbers for resources previously surveyed also are listed. In the
following inventory all resources, both primary and secondary, have been considered either contributing or non-contributing based upon the
areas of significance identified under Criteria A and C as: Agriculture, Architecture, Commerce, Education, Entertainment/Recreation, Ethnic
Heritage: Black, Exploration/Settlement, Social History, Transportation, and Military History; and based upon the period of significance
identified as circal760 to 1958 and 1963. All non-contributing resources have therefore been so noted for being less than fifty years old or as
having no integrity left to represent the period and areas of significance, unless otherwise noted. The latter includes one resource (030-5434-
0061), which was built in 1963, but is counted as a contributing resource due to its exceptional importance.

Atoka Road
1461 Atoka Road 030-0705 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0203 Rector House
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, ca 1830

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
1466 Atoka Road 030-5434-0205 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5154-0003 Gas Station
Primary Resource Information: Gas Station, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1927

Individual Resource Status: Gas Station Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1
1468 Atoka Road 030-5434-0206 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5154-0004 Atoka Store
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1892

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing Total: 1
1481 Atoka Road 030-5434-0209 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5154-0007 Kaos
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Late Victorian, 1893

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Meathouse Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Contributing Total: 1
1585 Atoka Road 030-5434-0068
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 2007

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
1643 Atoka Road 030-0133 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0158 Lakeland School
Primary Resource Information: School, Stories 1.00, Style: Federal, ca 1790

Individual Resource Status: School Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1
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1700 Atoka Road 030-5434-0070
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, ca 1787

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

1749 Atoka Road 030-5434-0071
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Colonial Revival, 1999

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

2081 Atoka Road 030-5434-0072
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Colonial Revival, 1964

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

2296 Atoka Road 030-5434-0075
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Colonial Revival, 2003

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

2380 Atoka Road 030-5434-0077
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1990

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

2381 Atoka Road 030-5434-0076
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1992

Single Dwelling
Stable

Single Dwelling
Pool/Swimming Pool
Tenant House

Stable

Single Dwelling
Pool House
Pool/Swimming Pool
Well House

Stable

Tenant House

Shed

Equipment Shed

Single Dwelling
Pool/Swimming Pool
Stable

Secondary Dwelling

Single Dwelling
Pool/Swimming Pool
Tenant House

Stable

Barn

Equipment Shed
Shed

Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:

Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:
Non-Contributing Total:

RPN R

=
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Total: 1

Innisfree

Peakewood Pharm

Evergreen
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2532 Atoka Road 030-0754

Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status

: Single Dwelling

: Secondary Dwelling
: Shed

: Pool/Swimming Pool

Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0134

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1888

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

2596 Atoka Road 030-5434-0078
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1955

Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status

2607 Atoka Road 030-5434-0081

Inc.

Archaeological Site
Barn

Single Dwelling
Carriage House
Shed

Storage
Pool/Swimming Pool

: Single Dwelling
: Shed
: Secondary Dwelling

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Colonial Revival, 1985

2644 Atoka Road 030-0034

Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status

: Single Dwelling
: Stable

: Equipment Shed
: Shed

: Windmill

Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing

Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0079

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Federal, ca 1810

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Smoke/Meat House
Garage

Single Dwelling
Shed

Cemetery
Spring/Spring House
Garage

Tenant House
Equipment Shed
Stable

Pool House
Pool/Swimming Pool

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
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Fieldstone

Laurel,

Kelvedon
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Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing

2669 Atoka Road 030-5434-0082
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1984

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Garage Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Crib Barn Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Well House Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Scale/Scale Building Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shelter Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Tennis Court Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool House Non-Contributing

2692 Atoka Road 030-5434-0135
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1986

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing

2720 Atoka Road 030-5434-0083
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Colonial Revival, 1953

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing

Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing

2779 Atoka Road 030-5434-0084
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1830

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing

Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool House Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-Contributing

2790 Atoka Road 030-5434-0085

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
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Total: 1
Total: 1
1
1
1
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Patrickswell

Periwinkle
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Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, 1988

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1

2795 Atoka Road 030-5434-0086

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1919
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total:
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 3

[3XY

2807 Atoka Road 030-5434-0087
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1997

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 3
2811 Atoka Road 030-5434-0088
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1940
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
2834 Atoka Road 030-5434-0089
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1959
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
2838 Atoka Road 030-5434-0090
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1959
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Storage Non-Contributing Total: 1
2857 Atoka Road 030-5434-0255 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0046
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1890
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
2858 Atoka Road 030-5434-0091
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, 1990
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing Total: 1
2874 Atoka Road 030-5434-0254 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0045
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1910
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

2877 Atoka Road 030-5434-0256 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0047
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1954
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Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

2888 Atoka Road 030-5434-0252 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0043
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1900

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Meathouse Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Contributing Total: 1

2897 Atoka Road 030-5434-0258 Other DHR I1d #: 030-5155-0049
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1910

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Ruins Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1

2900 Atoka Road 030-5434-0251 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0042
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1988
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

2903 Atoka Road 030-5434-0259 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0050
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, ca 1850
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

2908 Atoka Road 030-5434-0250 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0041
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1960

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
2914 Atoka Road 030-5347 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0249
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1924
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
2932 Atoka Road 030-5346 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0248 Mount Olive Baptist Church
Primary Resource Information: Church, Stories 1.00, Style: Gothic Revival, 1911
Individual Resource Status: Church Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Outdoor Recreation Non-Contributing Total: 1

2940 Atoka Road 030-5434-0247 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0038
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, ca 1890
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

2950 Atoka Road 030-5434-0246 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0037
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1950
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

2962 Atoka Road 030-5434-0245 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0036
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Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1965

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing
2974 Atoka Road 030-5434-0244 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0035
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1890
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing

Atoka Road, east of

Atoka Road, east of 030-5434-0257 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0048
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1910
Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing

Atoka Road, north of
Atoka Road, north of 030-5434-0204 Other DHR Id #: 030-5154-0002

Primary Resource Information: Spring/Spring House, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1830
Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Contributing

Atoka Road, west of
Atoka Road, west of 030-5434-0253 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0044
Lodge

Primary Resource Information: Meeting Hall, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1935
Individual Resource Status: Meeting Hall Contributing

Badger Hill Farm Lane

2235 Badger Hill Farm Lane 030-5434-0105
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1939

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing

Chilly Bleak Lane

8039 Chilly Bleak Lane 030-0569 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0172
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1820

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:

=

Mt. Olive Odd Fellows

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

1
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Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Crenshaw Road

2224 Crenshaw Road 030-0214

2565 Crenshaw Road 030-0593

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Single Dwelling
Cemetery

Dairy

Stable

Tenant House

Shed
Pool/Swimming Pool
Tennis Court

Pool House

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing

Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0050
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, ca 1867

Single Dwelling
Pool/Swimming Pool
Outbuilding

Tenant House
Pavilion

Greenhouse

Shed

Stable

Barn

Cemetery

Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing

Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0048

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Federal, 1810

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

2623 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0047
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1954

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

2637 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0046
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1950

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Single Dwelling
Shed
Foundation
Barn

Single Dwelling
Well House
Shed

Single Dwelling
Shed

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing

Contributing
Contributing

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:
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1

Rockburn

Total: 1

Glenmore Cabin

Total: 1
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2641 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0045

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Well House
Individual Resource Status: Shed

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House

2645 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0044

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed
2651 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0043

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

2705 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0041

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Shed

2707 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0039

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Garage

2709 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0040

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

2719 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0038

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

2725 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0037

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

2731 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0036

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Garage
Individual Resource Status: Shed

Other, ca 1950
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing

Other, 1949
Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, ca 1945
Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, ca 1940
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing

Other, 1985
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1979
Non-Contributing

Other, ca 1900
Contributing

Other, 1923
Non-Contributing

Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:

Dutch Colonial Revival, 1928

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Total:
Total:
Total:

=

Total: 1
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Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1

2749 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0035
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1962

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1

2755 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0034

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1951
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1

2761 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0033

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1939
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1

2773 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0032

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1939
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Contributing Total: 1

2789 Crenshaw Road 030-5434-0031
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, ca 1980

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Chicken House Contributing Total: 1
2806 Crenshaw Road 030-0036 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0235 Maidstone Ordinary
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1763

Individual Resource Status: Meat house Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Well House Contributing Total: 1

Crenshaw Road, east side

Crenshaw Road, east side 030-5434-0042 Warrenton Kennel Club Show Grounds
Primary Resource Information: Shelter, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1990

Individual Resource Status: Shelter Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Storage Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Field Non-Contributing Total: 1
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Crenshaw Road, N of Old Carter's Mill Rd

Crenshaw Road, N of Old Carter's Mill Rd 030-5147 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0051

Primary Resource Information: Bridge, Style: Other, ca 1915
Individual Resource Status: Bridge

Crenshaw Road, over Goose Creek

Contributing

Crenshaw Road, over Goose Creek 030-5146 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0052

Primary Resource Information: Bridge, Style: Other, 1919
Individual Resource Status: Bridge

Five Points Road

2476 Five Points Road 030-5434-0114

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Stable
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool

2517 Five Points Road 030-5434-0115

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed
Individual Resource Status: Stable

2531 Five Points Road 030-5434-0116

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool
Individual Resource Status: Garage

2572 Five Points Road 030-5434-0120

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House
Individual Resource Status: Shed

2575 Five Points Road 030-5434-0117
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

Contributing

: Other, 1972
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1959
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1985
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1995
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1991
Non-Contributing

Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
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Bridge #6034

Bridge #6033

Maresfield

Roundaway Farm
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Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool House Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing

2583 Five Points Road 030-5434-0118
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Colonial Revival, 1965

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing

2597 Five Points Road 030-5434-0121
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1929

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Office Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shop Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Well House Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Garage Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Tennis Court Contributing

2598 Five Points Road 030-0741 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0119
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1790

Individual Resource Status: Smoke/Meat House Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool House Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing

2636 Five Points Road 030-5434-0122
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1930

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Contributing

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
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Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic

OMB No.

Fauquier County, Virginia

Individual Resource Status: Cemetery

2674 Five Points Road 030-5434-0123

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Fortune Mountain Road

3183 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0181

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3220 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0182

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3226 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0193

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3231 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0183

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3233 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0191

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool

3235 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0184

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3244 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0195

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3247 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0196

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Outbuilding

Contributing

Other, ca 1800
Contributing

Other, 2000
Non-Contributing

Other, 1996
Non-Contributing

Other, 1949
Contributing

Other, 1929
Contributing

Other, 2003
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1949
Contributing

Other, 2001
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1949
Contributing
Contributing

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:

=

Rava
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Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic
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3248 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0194

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3251 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0197

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3253 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0199

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3256 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0198

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Cemetery

3259 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0054

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3265 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0053

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3273 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0055

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3277 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0056

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3286 Fortune Mountain Road 030-5434-0202

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style:

cal909
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

Individual Resource Status: Secondary Dwelling

Other, 1949
Contributing Total: 1
Contributing Total: 1
Other, 2001

Non-Contributing Total: 1

Other, 1968
Non-Contributing Total: 1
Non-Contributing Total: 2

Colston House

Other, 1909
Contributing Total: 1
Contributing Total: 3

Non-Contributing Total: 1

Other, 1929
Contributing Total: 1
Non-Contributing Total: 2

Other, 1939
Contributing Total: 1

Other, 1963
Non-Contributing Total: 1

Other, 1942
Contributing Total: 1
Contributing Total: 1

Non-Contributing Total: 1

Late 19th and Early 20th Century American Movement,

Contributing Total: 1
Contributing Total: 1
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Fortune Mountain Road, east of

Fortune Mountain Road, east of 030-5434-0192 Odd Fellows Cemetery
Primary Resource Information: Cemetery, Style: No Style Listed, ca 1966
Individual Resource Status: Cemetery Non-Contributing Total: 1

Fortune Mountain Road, west of
Fortune Mountain Road, west of 030-5434-0185 Smith Cemetery
Primary Resource Information: Cemetery, Style: No Style Listed, 1917

Individual Resource Status: Cemetery Contributing Total: 1

Foxmount Lane

7470 Foxmount Lane 030-5434-0069 Foxmount Farm

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Modern Movement, ca 1985
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Contributing Total: 3
Individual Resource Status: Guest House Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Office Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Secondary Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Playing Field Contributing Total: 1

Frogtown Road

7662 Frogtown Road 030-5434-0170
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Late 19th and Early 20th Century American Movement,
1909

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 2
7670 Frogtown Road 030-5434-0171 Chilly Bleak Tenant House
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1850

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
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Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic

Fauquier County, Virginia

Individual Resource Status: Silo

7672 Frogtown Road 030-5434-0169

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

8083 Frogtown Road 030-5434-0168

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Carport

8151 Frogtown Road 030-5434-0179
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Garage
Individual Resource Status: Shed
8159 Frogtown Road 030-5434-0167
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style
1909
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

8171 Frogtown Road 030-5434-0166

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool

8181 Frogtown Road 030-5434-0165

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Garage

Glenmore Lane

Contributing

: Ranch, 1975
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1929
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1985
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

N -

1
1
1

: Late 19th and Early 20th Century American Movement,

Contributing

: Other, 1986
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1996
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

8322 Glenmore Lane 030-0025 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0049

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Smoke/Meat House
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Kitchen
Individual Resource Status: Barn

: Federal, ca 1818
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

1

N -

N R P

Glenmore Farm
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Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic
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Individual Resource Status: Corncrib
Individual Resource Status: Silo
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Machine Shed
Individual Resource Status: Pen

Goose Creek Road

7233 Goose Creek Road 030-5434-0132

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

7265 Goose Creek Road 030-5434-0133

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

Individual Resource Status: Stable

Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed

Individual Resource Status: Shed

Individual Resource Status: Log Building
7333 Goose Creek Road 030-5434-0127

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Garage
Individual Resource Status: Barn

Individual Resource Status: Silo

7339 Goose Creek Road 030-5434-0126

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Garage

7360 Goose Creek Road 030-5434-0125

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

7378 Goose Creek Road 030-5434-0124

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

Grove Lane

Contributing Total: 1
Contributing Total: 1
Non-Contributing Total: 2

Non-Contributing Total: 5
Non-Contributing Total: 2

Non-Contributing Total: 1

: Other, 1994
Non-Contributing Total: 1
Non-Contributing Total: 1

: Other, ca 1839

Contributing Total: 1

Non-Contributing Total: 2

Non-Contributing Total: 2

Non-Contributing Total: 1

Non-Contributing Total: 1
: Other, 1993

Non-Contributing Total: 1

Non-Contributing Total: 1

Contributing Total: 1

Contributing Total: 1
: Other, 1945

Contributing Total: 1

Contributing Total: 1
: Other, 1949

Contributing Total: 1

Non-Contributing Total: 1

Oak House

: Other, 1949

Contributing Total: 1
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4115 Grove Lane 030-0514

Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0004

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Italianate, ca 1812

4189 Grove Lane 030-0210

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Single Dwelling
Smoke/Meat House
School

Equipment Shed
Tenant House
Mobile Home

Shed

Garage

Workshop
Spring/Spring House
Barn

Silo

Shed

Barn

Chicken House
Ruins

Machine Shed
Corncrib

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0003

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1820

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

4225 Grove Lane 030-5434-0002
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1962

4423 Grove Lane 030-5324

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Single Dwelling
Outbuilding
Ruins
Foundation
Barn

Silo

Single Dwelling
Garage

Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0001

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, ca 1890

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Single Dwelling
Silo

Meathouse

Barn

Garage
Cemetery

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
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Rutledge

Glanville
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Hatchers Mill Road

1597 Hatchers Mill Road 030-5434-0064

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1987

Individual Resource Status

1601 Hatchers Mill Road 030-5434-0063

: Single Dwelling

Non-Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Colonial Revival, 1970

Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status

1663 Hatchers Mill Road 030-5434-0062

: Single Dwelling
: Garage
: Shed

Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1981

Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status

1664 Hatchers Mill Road 030-0062

: Single Dwelling
: Pool House

: Pool/Swimming Pool

: Stable
: Equipment Shed

Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0061

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1963

Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status

2007 Hatchers Mill Road 030-0387

: Single Dwelling
: Stable

: Garage

: Tennis Court

: Pool/Swimming Pool

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0131

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: 1819

Individual Resource Status: Archaeological Site

Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status

Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool

2055 Hatchers Mill Road 030-5434-0130

: Barn
: Single Dwelling

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1994

Individual Resource Status

2083 Hatchers Mill Road 030-5434-0129

: Single Dwelling

Non-Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, 1989

Individual Resource Status

: Single Dwelling

Non-Contributing

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:

e L =
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Wexford

Delacarlia

Pan D'or
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2163 Hatchers Mill Road 030-0753

Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0128

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Federal, ca 1850

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

John Mosby Highway

1501 John Mosby Highway 030-0904
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Federal, ca 1830

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Single Dwelling
Guest House
Garage
Pool/Swimming Pool
Office/dwelling
Stable

Shop

Tenant House
Equipment Shed
Winery

Shed

Barn

Animal Facility

Contributing

Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0080

Single Dwelling
Spring/Spring House
Pool House
Pool/Swimming Pool
Tenant House
Tenant House
Equipment Shed
Machine Shed
Stable

Stable

Barn

Storage

Shed

Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

6579 John Mosby Highway 030-0659 Other DHR ld#: 030-5434-0065
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Federal, ca 1800

Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status

: Single Dwelling

: Dairy

: Pool/Swimming Pool
: Mill

: Stable

: Tenant House

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
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Kinross

Stoneleigh

Hatcher’s Mill
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Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic
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Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Secondary Dwelling
Storage
Garage

7174 John Mosby Highway 030-5434-0060
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1930

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Single Dwelling
Dairy barn/Hay barn
Silo

Shed

Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing

7208 John Mosby Highway 030-0706 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0059
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Early Republic, ca 1800

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

John Mosby Highway, south of

John Mosby Highway, south of
Primary Resource Information: Monument/Marker, Style: Other, ca 1906
Individual Resource Status:

Justice Lane

9358 Justice Lane 030-0044

Barn

Single Dwelling
Corncrib/shed
Spring/Spring House
Storage

Pool House
Pool/Swimming Pool

030-5434-0066

Monument/Marker

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Contributing

Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0006

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Colonial, 1773

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Smoke/Meat House
Single Dwelling
Slave Quarters
Barn

Well

School
Spring/Spring House
Windmill

Tenant House
Cemetery

Shed

Stable

Silo

Machine Shed

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
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Atoka Forge

Shirland Hall

Segregation Lane

Oak Hill
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Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status
Individual Resource Status

9406 Justice Lane 030-5434-0005
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1990

Individual Resource Status

Lake Farm Road

1641 Lake Farm Road 030-0704

: Corncrib/shed
: Agricultural Bldg.
: Kitchen

: Single Dwelling

Contributing Total: 1
Contributing Total: 1
Contributing Total: 1

Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0067 Atoka Farm
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Federal, ca 1816
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing Total: 3
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Non-Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Storage Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Chicken House Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Pen Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Tennis Court Non-Contributing Total: 1
Little Heron Lane
3029 Little Heron Lane 030-5434-0136 Ballina
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1984
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing Total: 1
Longview Lane
3114 Longview Lane 030-0564 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0008 Flint Hill Farm
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Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Greek Revival, 1833

Individual Resource Status: Smoke/Meat House Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Outbuilding Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Guest House Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 3
Individual Resource Status: Log Building Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Hangar Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

3295 Longview Lane 030-5434-0156
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 2006
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

Lost Corner Road

3036 Lost Corner Road 030-5434-0210 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0001 Westwood Custom Farming
Primary Resource Information: Warehouse, Stories 3.00, Style: Other, ca 1880

Individual Resource Status: Warehouse Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Storage Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1

3064 Lost Corner Road 030-5434-0013

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1991
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1

3131 Lost Corner Road 030-5434-0014 Log House

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, ca 1880
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1

3192 Lost Corner Road 030-5434-0009
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1889

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Corncrib/barn Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Machine Shed Contributing Total: 1

3209 Lost Corner Road 030-5434-0015 Claybrook
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Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, ca 1991

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Outbuilding Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing

3309 Lost Corner Road 030-5434-0016

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1987
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing

3318 Lost Corner Road 030-5348 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0018
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, ca 1890

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Corncrib Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Agricultural Bldg. Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Windmill Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Cemetery Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing

3327 Lost Corner Road 030-5434-0017
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1971

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Non-Contributing

3356 Lost Corner Road 030-5434-0019
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1975
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing

3373 Lost Corner Road 030-0860 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0020
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1850

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Tool Shed Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Chicken House Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Corncrib Contributing

3383 Lost Corner Road 030-5434-0021

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
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Sunnyside

Cronin House

Locust Grove

Chattin
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Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1988

3393 Lost Corn

Individual Resource Status:

er Road 030-5434-0022

Single Dwelling

Non-Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1880

3439 Lost Corn

3412 Lost Corn

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

er Road 030-5434-0023

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

er Road 030-5434-0024

Single Dwelling
Stable

Studio
Equipment Shed
Pump House
Shed

Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing

Other DHR 1d #: 030-0859
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1840

Single Dwelling
Smoke/Meat House
Tenant House
Barn

Shed

Shed

Chicken House
Workshop
Equipment Shed
Stable

Garage

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1975

Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:
Individual Resource Status:

Maidstone Road
8424 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0220 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0011
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1880

Individual Resource Status:

Single Dwelling
Garage
Shed

Single Dwelling

Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Contributing

8432 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0219 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0010
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1900

Individual Resource Status:

8436 Maidstone Road 030-0232

Individual Resource Status:

Single Dwelling

Contributing

Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0218
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1795

Single Dwelling

Contributing

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:

e
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Mount Seclusion

Lake House
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Individual Resource Status: Garage Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Contributing Total: 1
8446 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0028 Rectortown Equine Center
Primary Resource Information: Office, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1930
Individual Resource Status: Office Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Dairy barn/Hay barn Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 3
8449 Maidstone Road 030-0834 Other DHR Id#: 030-5434-0217
Primary Resource Information: Office, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1850
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
8450 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0057 Sonanda
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1968
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
8467 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0157
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 2000
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
8495 Maidstone Road 030-0927 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0216
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1900
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1
8498 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0190
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1979
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
8517 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0215 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0006
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1850
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Pump House Non-Contributing Total: 1

8520 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0214 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0005
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Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1880
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Meathouse Contributing Total: 1

8528 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0213 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0004
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Bungalow/Craftsman, ca 1910

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Chicken coop Contributing Total: 1
8534 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0212 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0003 Rectortown Farm Center
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1930

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing Total: 1

8579 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0029
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1985

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1

8916 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0030
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1940

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
9078 Maidstone Road 030-0811 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0012 Paradise
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, ca 1850

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Summer Kitchen Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Meathouse Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Garage Contributing Total: 1

9146 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0010

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1972
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total:
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 3

[xY

9184 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0011

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1963
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Tool Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
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9198 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0007
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1989

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shelter Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
9471 Maidstone Road 030-5434-0187 Other DHR Id #: 030-5369-0167 Brockett Property
Primary Resource Information: Tenant House, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1980

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
9525 Maidstone Road 030-0059 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0186 Woodside
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Greek Revival, ca 1820

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Meathouse Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Kitchen Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Machine Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1

Maidstone Road, east of

Maidstone Road, east of 030-5434-0221 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0012 Rectortown Cemetery
Primary Resource Information: Cemetery, Style:, ca 1843
Individual Resource Status: Cemetery Contributing Total: 1

Merry Chase Lane

2351 Merry Chase Lane 030-0740 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0074 Merry Chase

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1827
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Contributing Total: 3
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Chicken House Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Tractor Shed Contributing Total: 1
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Individual Resource Status: Garage
Individual Resource Status: Shed

Individual Resource Status: Workshop
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed

Oak Grove Road

7439 Oak Grove Road 030-5434-0073

Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1928

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House
Individual Resource Status: Carriage House
Individual Resource Status: Wood Shed
Individual Resource Status: Garage

Individual Resource Status: Shed

Individual Resource Status: Shed

Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed
Individual Resource Status: Stable

Individual Resource Status: Cemetery
Individual Resource Status: Dairy barn/Hay barn
Individual Resource Status: Silo

Individual Resource Status: Barn

Individual Resource Status: Silo

Individual Resource Status: Shelter

Individual Resource Status: Well House
Individual Resource Status: Corncrib/shed
Individual Resource Status: Secondary Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Barn

Oak Hill Road

Oak Hill Road 030-0590

Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Other DHR ld#: 030-5434-0200

Primary Resource Information: Blacksmith Shop, Stories 3.00, Style: Other, ca 1880

Individual Resource Status: Blacksmith Shop

3381 Oak Hill Road 030-5434-0176

Contributing

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1948

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3384 Oak Hill Road 030-5434-0175

Contributing

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

R NN

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

PR RPRPNANRROR

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

PN W

Total: 1

Total: 1

Oak Grove Farm

Total: 1

Total: 1

Total: 1

Dodson’s Blacksmith Shop

Total: 1

Total: 1

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Late 19th and Early 20th Century American Movement,

cal900
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

Contributing

Total: 1
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Fauquier County, Virginia

3392 Oak Hill Road 030-5434-0188

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1971
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing

3424 Oak Hill Road 030-5434-0189
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1880

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Corncrib Contributing

3427 Oak Hill Road 030-5434-0201
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 2005
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing

3437 Oak Hill Road 030-5434-0174

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Late Victorian, Other, 1905

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Smoke/Meat House Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing

3449 Oak Hill Road 030-5434-0173
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1950

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Well Contributing

3468 Oak Hill Road 030-0053 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0058

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Federal, ca 1838
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing

Oak Springs Road, off of

Oak Springs Road, off of 030-0713 Other DHR ld#: 030-5434-0265

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: No Style Listed, ca 1803
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing

Oak Springs Road, off of 030-0714 Other DHR ld#: 030-5434-0266

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: No Style Listed, ca 1840
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing

Total: 1
Total: 1

Total: 1
Total:
Total: 1

[XY

Total: 1

Smith House

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

el

Total: 1
Total: 1

The Grove
Total: 1

Total: 1
Total: 1

Woolf’s Mill Stone House
Total: 1
Woolf’s Mill Log House

Total: 1



NPS Form 10-900-a
1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
District

Inventory

Section Page _52

OMB No.

Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic

Fauquier County, Virginia

Old Carters Mill Road

7581 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0107

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

7583 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0106

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

7611 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0108

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

7639 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0109

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Storage
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool

7673 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0110

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shelter
Individual Resource Status: Stable

7743 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0111

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

7773 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0112

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Stable
Individual Resource Status: Garage
Individual Resource Status: Shed

7825 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0113

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

Colonial Revival, 1988
Non-Contributing

Colonial Revival, 1988
Non-Contributing

Other, 1982
Non-Contributing

Other, 1985
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1975
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1997
Non-Contributing

Other, 1975
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1971
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:

e

Evergreen

Emarcis

Squirrel's Nest
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7863 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0102

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Garage

Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool
Individual Resource Status: Stable

Individual Resource Status: Shed

7933 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0103

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool
Individual Resource Status: Stable

Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed

8013 Old Carters Mill Road 030-5434-0104

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Stable
Individual Resource Status: Barn

Old Maidstone Road

8309 Old Maidstone Road 030-5434-0100

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

8313 Old Maidstone Road 030-5434-0101

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

8314 Old Maidstone Road 030-5434-0099

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

8334 Old Maidstone Road 030-5434-0098

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

8340 Old Maidstone Road 030-5434-0097

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Other, 1985
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1974
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1976
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1977
Non-Contributing

Other, ca 1980
Non-Contributing

Other, 2004
Non-Contributing

Other, 1909
Contributing
Non-Contributing

Other, 1959

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:
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Wetherburn Farm
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Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing

8344 Old Maidstone Road 030-5434-0096

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1988
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing

8348 Old Maidstone Road 030-5434-0095
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, ca 1930

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Rectors Lane
7258 Rectors Lane 030-5434-0208 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5154-0006
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1850
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
7260 Rectors Lane 030-5434-0207 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5154-0005
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, ca 1830
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing

Rectortown Road

Rectortown Road 030-5434-0211 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0002

Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1835
Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing

2648 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0026
Primary Resource Information: Mill, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1770

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Mill Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing

2975 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0230 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0021

Primary Resource Information: Post Office, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1954
Individual Resource Status: Post Office Contributing

2981 Rectortown Road 030-0766 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0232

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1780
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing

Individual Resource Status: Privy Contributing

Total: 1
Total: 1

Total: 1
Total: 1

Total: 1

Total: 1

Total: 1

Rectors Warehouse

Total: 1
Total: 1

Milan Mill

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

RN R

Rectortown Post Office
Total: 1
Slack Log House

Total: 1
Total: 1
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2725 Rectortown Road 030-0568 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0025
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1810
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
2910 Rectortown Road 030-0858 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0027 Edgecliff Farm
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1900
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 2
Individual Resource Status: Equipment Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Non-Contributing Total: 1
2954 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0226 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0017 Willis Field
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, ca 1910
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
2955 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0227 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0018
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Bungalow/Craftsman, ca 1920
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
2965 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0228 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0019
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1890
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
2970 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0225 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0016
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1910
Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
2971 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0229 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0020
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Vernacular Greek Revival, 1850
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Meathouse Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Chicken coop Contributing Total: 1

2974 Rectortown Road 030-0800 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0224 Aspenhill; Aspen Dale
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Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Federal, 1833

Individual Resource Status: Office/Office Bldg. Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Cemetery Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
2979 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0231 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0022
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1890
Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing Total: 1
2986 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0222 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0013
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1900
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1

2994 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0223 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0014
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1900

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
2995 Rectortown Road 030-0767 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0233 Julep Chase
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1800

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Foundation Non-Contributing Total: 1
3001 Rectortown Road 030-0835 Other DHR Id#: 030-5434-0234 Rectortown Store
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1840

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1
3016 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0263 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0054
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1970

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1

3020 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0262 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0053
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1920
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

3025 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0236 Other DHR I1d #: 030-5155-0027
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1800
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
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Individual Resource Status: Kitchen Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
3026 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0261 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0052 Tree Toad
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1970

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
3037 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0237 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0028
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1965

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
3043 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0238 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5155-0029
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1958

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1
3049 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0239 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0030 Rectortown United Methodist Church
Primary Resource Information: Church, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1894

Individual Resource Status: Church Contributing Total: 1

3050 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0094
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 1850

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Tennis Court Non-Contributing Total: 1
3055 Rectortown Road 030-0208 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0240 Rectortown School
Primary Resource Information: School, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1880

Individual Resource Status: School Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1

3066 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0093
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1982

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 3
Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing Total: 1

3074 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0092
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1986
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
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Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing Total: 1
3079 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0242 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0033
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1900

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
3085 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0243 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-0034
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Other, ca 2000

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1
3112 Rectortown Road 030-0209 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0260 Pennygent Farm
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1800

Individual Resource Status: Smoke/Meat House Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Corncrib Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Pool House Contributing Total: 1
3284 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0137 Claude Thompson Elementary School
Primary Resource Information: School, Stories 2.00, Style: Moderne, 1963

Individual Resource Status: School Non-Contributing Total: 1

3287 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0147
Primary Resource Information: Mixed Use: Other, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, 2003

Individual Resource Status: Mixed Used: Other Non-Contributing
3292 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0138
Spruce Hill
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, 1958
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing

3299 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0146

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1920
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing

The Farm at Maidstone

Total: 1

Total: 1
Total: 3

Total: 1
Total: 2
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3300 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0139

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3305 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0145

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style:

1909
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Garage

3309 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0144

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3312 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0140

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3322 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0141

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3328 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0142

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3337 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0143

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style:

cal900
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3358 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0148

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3362 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0150

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style:

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

Other, 1958

Contributing Total: 1

Late 19th and Early 20th Century American Movement,

Contributing Total: 1
Contributing Total: 1
Other, 1994
Non-Contributing Total: 1
Non-Contributing Total: 1
Grant House
Other, 1951
Contributing Total: 1
Non-Contributing Total: 1
Grant House
Other, 1953
Contributing Total: 1
Other, 1943
Contributing Total: 1

Late 19th and Early 20th Century American Movement,

Total: 1
Total: 1

Contributing
Contributing

Old Grant House
Mid 19th Century, 1867

Contributing Total: 1

Contributing Total: 1
Other, 1986

Non-Contributing Total: 1

Non-Contributing Total: 1
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3368 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0149
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3380 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0151
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3381 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0153
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3382 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0152

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3384 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0154
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling

3388 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0155

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Shed

3435 Rectortown Road 030-0769
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Stable
Individual Resource Status: Smoke/Meat House
Individual Resource Status: Guest House
Individual Resource Status: Cemetery
Individual Resource Status: Machine Shed
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Stable

3483 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0180

Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style
Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling
Individual Resource Status: Barn
Individual Resource Status: Gazebo

3530 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0178

: Other, 1958
Contributing

: Other, 1985
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1929
Contributing

: Other, 1968
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1929
Contributing

: Other, 1929
Contributing
Contributing

Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0159

: Federal ca 1820
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

: Other, 1984
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:

Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:

Total:
Total:
Total:
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Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.00, Style: Other, ca 1955

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1
3553 Rectortown Road 030-0884 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0177 Mountain View Farm
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Other, ca 1830

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Well Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Corncrib Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 4

3724 Rectortown Road 030-5434-0267
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Bungalow, 1929

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1
Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1

Rectortown Road, north of

Rectortown Road, north of 030-5434-0241 Other DHR Id #: 030-5155-032 Robinson House Site
Primary Resource Information: Foundation, Style: Other, ca 1900

Individual Resource Status: Ruins Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Cemetery Contributing Total: 1

Rectortown Road, west of

Rectortown Road, west of 030-5434-0264 Grant-Chloe Cemetery
Primary Resource Information: Cemetery, 1899
Individual Resource Status: Cemetery Contributing Total: 1

Smitten Farm Lane

7181 Smitten Farm Lane 030-0635 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0161 Smitten Farm
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.00, Style: Federal, 1824

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Smoke/Meat House Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Kitchen Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Spring/Spring House Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Guest House Contributing Total: 1
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Individual Resource Status: Other Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Stable Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 5

Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Machine Shed Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Well House Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Non-Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Silo Non-Contributing Total: 1
Whiting Road
3284 Whiting Road 030-5434-0162 Poke
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1975

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Garage Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Pool/Swimming Pool Non-Contributing Total: 1
3370 Whiting Road 030-5434-0164
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 1.50, Style: Other, 1890

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1
3459 Whiting Road 030-0669 Other DHR Id #: 030-5434-0160 Maizemoor
Primary Resource Information: Barn, Stories 1.50, Style: Italianate, pre 1880

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Kitchen Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Machine Shed Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Non-Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Shed Contributing Total: 1
8103 Whiting Road 030-0914 Other DHR 1d #: 030-5434-0163 Glen Welby
Primary Resource Information: Single Dwelling, Stories 2.50, Style: Federal Other, ca 1850

Individual Resource Status: Single Dwelling Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Tenant House Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Barn Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Stable Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Silo Contributing Total: 2

Individual Resource Status: Corncrib Contributing Total: 1

Individual Resource Status: Chicken House Contributing Total: 1



NPS Form 10-900-a
1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
District

Section Inventory Page _63

Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic

OMB No.

Fauquier County, Virginia

Individual Resource Status: Tractor Shed
Individual Resource Status: Tenant House
Individual Resource Status: Garage
Individual Resource Status: Shed
Individual Resource Status: Windmill
Individual Resource Status: Barn
Individual Resource Status: Machine Shed
Individual Resource Status: Springhouse

Non-Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Contributing
Non-Contributing
Contributing
Contributing

Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
Total:
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY

The Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District, located in the north-central part of Fauquier County, encompasses
approximately 14,185 acres of rolling farmland centered along Atoka Road (Route 713). The district is generally
bounded on the west by Goose Creek, on the east by Cromwell’s Run, on the north by U.S. Route 50 and the county
line, and on the south by Route 55. The large number of non-contributing resources is accounted for by the presence
of numerous farm buildings that have been built within the last 50 years. As the area is composed of large working
farms and is a living landscape, the development of additional facilities is a natural outgrowth of the vitality of these
properties.

The Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District is eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places under
Criteria A, B, and C, with Criteria Consideration G and a period of significance between circa 1760 and 1958. It also
contains Wexford, a house built in 1963 for President and Mrs. John F. Kennedy. Although less than 50 years old, it
is considered a contributing building because of its association with an American president and first lady. The historic
district is a definable area that illustrates the historic use of the land by residents in pursuit of an agriculturally-based
lifestyle and that possesses a significant concentration of historic buildings that are linked through the continuity of
land use, roadways, waterways, and natural features. While largely rural, the area is tied together by the presence of a
commercial center (Rectortown) and several crossroads communities. Beginning in the early twentieth century,
wealthy Northerners moved into the area, drawn by inexpensive farmland and the rural nature of the area for available
foxhunting grounds. The territory of two active hunt clubs—the Orange County Hunt and the Piedmont Fox
Hounds—is located within the historic district boundaries.

The district is eligible under Criterion A for its contribution to the broad patterns of Fauquier County and Virginia
history and possesses significance on a local level in the areas of agriculture, commerce, education, entertainment/
recreation, black heritage, exploration and settlement, military history, politics/government, social history, and
transportation. The area is associated with the broad pattern of exploration and settlement through its historical role
within Lord Fairfax’s Northern Neck Proprietary. The overall pattern of large parcel, agriculturally-oriented
development with small, intact crossroads commercial centers—a pattern that was established through the manorial
system of land grants—remains on the landscape today and can be seen in such elements as stone walls that mark
historical property divisions, as well as in the large estates that make up the center section of the district.

The historic district also is significant for its Civil War-era military history, which is evidenced through its strong
historical connection with Confederate Col. John S. Mosby. Among the resources within the district that relate to this
theme are the Caleb Rector house in Atoka (030-0705; 030-5434-0203), at which Mosby’s Rangers were organized in
1863, and the dwellings at Lakeland (030-5434-0070)--Glen Welby (030-0914; 030-5434-0163), and Rockburn (030-
0214; 030-5434-0050)--which were used as “safe houses” and meeting places. Several sites within the district are
also related to important engagements and events during the war.

The broad patterns of agriculture and recreation overlap a bit within the district. Historically, subsistence agriculture
in the area relied on the production of wheat and grain and the raising of livestock for local consumption or shipment



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No.
1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic
District

Fauquier County, Virginia
Section 8 Page _65

to outside markets. While beef and dairy cattle are still present on area farms, horses have become an important
agricultural and economic industry in the region. Foxhunting is an associated pursuit that relies on the continuing (and
contiguous) rural nature of the area for available hunting grounds. Given the predominance of the sport and its impact
on the region, the area is known as part of Virginia’s “Hunt Country.”

The Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District also qualifies for listing under Criterion C as a significant and intact
concentration of architectural resources and cultural landscape features (e.g., stone walls, fences, waterways, historic
roadbeds) dating from about the mid-eighteenth century through the mid-twentieth century. The proposed district
contains a variety of resource types that embody distinctive characteristics of various periods and styles and includes
dwellings, farm buildings, domestic outbuildings, churches, schools, mills, and commercial and industrial buildings
(e.g., mills). Dwellings, which make up the majority of primary resources within the district, are of traditional
vernacular forms (hall-and-parlor, center-passage, I-house) and include both vernacular cabins and dwellings (030-
5434-0008, -0025, and -0048), as well as more prominent Federal-style houses (030-5434-0049, -0058, and -0128).
Other resources in the district also illustrate the influences of Greek Revival, Italianate, and late Victorian-era design
(030-5434-0004, -0006, -0008, -0012, and -0160). Late-nineteenth-century and early-twentieth-century farmhouses
and tenant houses (030-5434-0082, -0143, -0148, -0167, and -0171) and early-twentieth-century bungalows and
cottage-style dwellings are also located within the district (030-5434-0073, -0267). In addition to dwellings, the
farms in the district are frequently associated with large agricultural complexes. As mentioned above, many of these
farms were expanded during the early twentieth century by Northerners who moved to the area. The resulting
equestrian estates that they built often began with historic resources, such as a dwelling and some historic
outbuildings (e.g., kitchen, meat house), and grew to include new stables, barns, tenant dwellings, and associated
sheds and outbuildings. Such estates include Rockburn (030-5434-0050), Merry Chase (030-5434-0074), Stoneleigh
(030-5434-0080), Chilly Bleak (030-5434-0172), and Kelvedon (030-5434-0079).

The district also contains Wexford (030-0061; 030-5434-0062), a house built in 1963 for President and Mrs. John F.
Kennedy. Although less than 50 years old, thus meeting Criteria Consideration G, the house is considered a
contributing building because of its historical association with an American president. Wexford is significant as the
only residence ever built for the Kennedys and is notable as a residence that was built for a U.S. president while still
in office. Wexford also meets Criterion B for its historical association with an American president, and is significant
under the politics/government theme.

The landscape within the district is characterized by open pasture fields with rolling hills and areas of woodland. The
center of the district is a wide, open valley of rolling land that is well-watered by deep springs and creeks. The
majority of the land is in active agricultural use including beef and dairy cattle farming; equestrian facilities for
breeding, training, and boarding of horses; and small vineyards. The proposed district contains a variety of resource
types that embody distinctive characteristics of various periods and styles and includes dwellings, farm buildings,
domestic outbuildings, churches, schools, mills, and commercial and industrial buildings. Residences make up the
majority of resources within the district and are often enhanced by the presence of large agricultural and domestic
complexes.



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No.
1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic
District

Fauquier County, Virginia
Section 8 Page _66




NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No.
1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic
District

Fauquier County, Virginia
Section 8 Page _67

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

Colonial Period through Early National Period

During the eighteenth century, the area within Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District was part of the Northern Neck
Proprietary—a vast landholding that encompassed more than five million acres and that was roughly bounded
between the Chesapeake Bay on the east and Maryland on the west, and the Potomac River on the north and the
Rappahannock River on the south.”®> This large swath of the Virginia colony was owned by Thomas, 6™ Lord Fairfax
whose agents dispensed leases and grants within the proprietary. The Englishman also reserved thousands of acres of
the land for himself, most notably his Manor of Leeds (in Fauquier County) and Greenway Court (in Clarke County).
Fairfax visited these and other lands he had reserved and built a “lodge” for himself at Greenway. It is said that one
of Fairfax’s favorite pasttimes while in the colony was hunting and that in 1747 he sent his hounds ahead of him for
such purposes.*

Early land grants

The earliest grants within the area of Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District were generally large-acreage parcels
obtained by absentee owners who lived in other areas of the colony such as Westmoreland County, Lancaster County,
and areas within Tidewater. While Fauquier County had been established in 1759 from parts of Prince William
County, eighteenth-century settlement was relatively sparse in the northern region of the county until the signing of
the Treaty of Paris (1763), which ended the French and Indian War.*” The landowners attempted to “seat,” or settle,
the land under a system of leaseholds, or sublets to settlers who would build a house (usually a requirement of the
grant), clear, and cultivate the land. This system of land grants and subleases resulted in substantial expanses of land
remaining largely intact and little-developed until the late eighteenth century. In the mid-eighteenth century, as the
first generation of grant holders died and their heirs settled their estates, the land became available to others who
sought to live in the rich agricultural area.

Some of the early (1730-1750) grants in the area within the historic district were conveyed to Henry Turner, Thomas
Weaver, and Charles Burgess, who lived elsewhere and did not occupy the land. Later owners who purchased parts of
those early grants included George Washington, Thomas Marshall, and John Rector. Other families who owned land
early on in the area of the historic district included the Lakes, Glascocks, and Kincheloes. Today, these names
continue to be prominent in the area. In 1731, Colonel Charles Burgess of Lancaster County was granted 13,879
acres “on the east side of Goose Creek” and also received two grants just months later that also cited Goose Creek as a
boundary and totaled over 4,000 acres. Harry Turner’s 1740 grant of 1,700 acres was later purchased by Thomas
Marshall, where he built his home of Oak Hill (near Bolling Branch). In 1741, Tilman Weaver was granted 539 acres
“on some branches of Crummey’s run adjoining [Maj. James] Ball’s land.” Weaver never occupied the land, which
later passed to John Rector of the Germantown settlement, who founded Fauquier County’s first town at Maidstone.

George Washington and Flint Hill Farm

In 1772, Washington obtained about 600 acres on the east side of the district between Goose Creek and Chattin’s Run,
which was conveyed to him by Bryan Fairfax as payment of a debt. Later survey determined that the parcel actually
held over 1,000 acres. Washington added this land to his over 2,000-acre Ashby’s Bent tract located near the village
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of Paris and Lost Mountain. Washington, like Fairfax, did not live on the land, but leased tracts to those willing to
settle there. Washington did know the property well and, although he had a local agent, he often visited the land to
check on tenants and assess the maintenance of the land.*®

Flint Hill Farm (030-564; 030-5434-0008), located on the southeast side of Maidstone Road, is comprised of much of
Washington’s Chattin’s Run tract. Tenants on the land included John Thompson, Enoch Ashby, and Capt. Benjamin
Rust. Rust is believed to have built the initial stone section of the main dwelling on Flint Hill Farm, as well as the
stone meat house, log outbuilding near the house, and the stone springhouse. Two log dwellings on the property also
appear to date from the late eighteenth to early nineteenth centuries. The main dwelling was modified in 1833 with
the addition of a Greek Revival-style log and frame section on the northwest side. In 1945, the house was again
modified and enlarged.*®

The resources found on Flint Hill Farm are typical of the architectural resources located within the district that date to
the Early National Period (1789-1830) and associated with the exploration/settlement theme. Most of these resources
are dwellings, some of which are associated domestic outbuildings (slave quarters, kitchens, springhouse, meat
houses, icehouses). No farm buildings (i.e., barns, cribs) in the district appear to date to this early period. Many
dwellings constructed into the second and third decades of the nineteenth century were of log construction; however,
stone and frame construction were also used. Chimneys and foundations also were constructed of stone, which was a
readily available material.™

Thomas Marshall and Oak Hill

In 1772, Thomas Marshall acquired 1,700 acres in the southern part of the historic district where he built his home,
Oak Hill (030-0044). Marshall had come to Fauquier County in 1763 from Westmoreland County as a surveyor and
local justice. Marshall had built a modest home on a leased tract on the southern slopes of Naked Mountain near
Markham, but as his conditions improved, he sought to purchase land for a home. In 1740, the Oak Hill property,
located south of Goose Creek and east of Little Cobbler Mountain, had been granted to Harry Turner and was later
conveyed to Thomas Turner, who sold it to Marshall. Thomas’s son John, later Chief Justice of the U.S. Supreme
Court, inherited the land, which was then conveyed to his son, Thomas. The house began as a one-and-a-half-story
frame dwelling with exterior-end chimneys. Several associated outbuildings from the period, including a slave
quarters, a kitchen, and a carriage house, are still extant on the property. In 1818, the two-story, Greek Revival-style
wing on the north end of the house was constructed and later the two sections were connected by a hyphen.

John Rector and Maidstone (Rectortown)

In 1772, John Rector petitioned the Virginia General Assembly for the creation of a village on his land near the main
road to Salem (present-day Marshall) and the confluence of Chattin’s Run and Goose Creek. The General Assembly
consented and Fauquier County’s first town was known as Maidstone, in honor of the location of Lord Fairfax’s home
in England, and held about a dozen dwellings.>* The village soon was referred to as “Rectortown” due to its close
association with the Rector family, who owned the land on which the town was founded as well as much of the land
surrounding the village. Houses that date to this period in the village include the circa 1780 Rector-Slack Log House
at 2981 Rectortown Road (030-0766; 030-5434-0232); the log section of the Ashby House at 3025 Rectortown Road
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(030-5434-0236), which also includes a late-eighteenth-century stone meat house; and the well-intact stone George
Mann House on Maidstone Road (030-0232; 030-5434-0218), which dates from about 1795 and is notable for its side
orientation to the main road.

Early Nineteenth-Century Commerce and Industry

In addition to domestic resources, however, there are some commercial and industrial resources that also are
associated with the theme of exploration and settlement and commerce and reflect the burgeoning enterprises that
would expand and flourish in the area during the nineteenth century. In 1779, Daniel Floweree obtained a license to
operate an ordinary along the main road (present-day Rectortown Road). The log building, which may have been
constructed as early as the 1760s, was known as Floweree’s or Maidstone Ordinary (030-0036; 030-5434-0235) and
was the earliest commercial enterprise in the village. Gristmills and sawmills were also an early industry that
developed within the area of the historic district during the late eighteenth century. Though none of the mills in the
district dating to the eighteenth century are extant, their presence has been documented and in one case, the mill site
has been excavated.

Around 1775, Charles Rector established a mill about one mile southwest of the village of Maidstone on Chattin’s
Run on land held by George Washington. Despite the fact that Rector had not requested permission from the
landowner to erect the mill, it was allowed to remain as an amenity to the property.> Woolf’s Mill (44FQ0078),
located along the east bank of Goose Creek, was first erected around 1798 by Caleb Whitacre who maintained the mill
until 1807. The mill was operated in the antebellum period by Hezekiah Glascock who added a sawmill to the
complex in 1810. In 1827, the mill was destroyed by fire but was rebuilt by George Marks in 1832. At the beginning
of the Civil War, the mill was purchased by Elijah McClanahan, who left the property to his daughter Sophie. Sophie
married Francis (Frank) Woolf, who operated the mill until his death in 1901. The property was purchased by the
Mellons in 1932 and remains in their ownership. The early-nineteenth-century mill building, which had fallen into
disrepair, was fully excavated between 1985 and 1992. Researchers determined that the mill complex “uniquely
illustrates the innovations first publicized by Oliver Evan’s [sic] in his formative work The Young Mill-Wright &
Miller’s Guide (1995).”* In addition to historical research, the project delineated the mill site and all the features
associated with its operation, which included the collection of a significant number of artifacts and structural features
such as the remains of the mill’s tub wheel, a rare type of horizontal water wheel and the first of its kind discovered
and excavated in Virginia. The artifacts were donated to the Commonwealth of Virginia. Blacksmith shops are
another industry that are known to have developed during this period. Although such shops are still extant in the
district, most of the buildings appear to date from the later nineteenth century. Dodson’s blacksmith shop (030-5434-
0200) is located in the community of Oak Hill and is believed to have been constructed around 1880. Part of the main
dwelling at the farm at 2628 Five Points Road (030-5434-0122), which was formerly part of the Kincheloe farm of
Greendale, is comprised of an old blacksmith shop, as is the dwelling at 3020 Rectortown Road (030-5434-0262) in
Rectortown.

Nineteenth-century mills are represented in the district by the circa 1800 Hatcher’s Mill (also known as Chinn’s Mill)
(030-0659; 030-5434-0065) located on Cromwell’s Run in the northeast part of the historic district. This property has
been listed individually on the National Register. A mill may have been operated at this site as early as 1768 when
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county minute books record that Charles Chinn received permission to erect a water mill on Cromwell’s Run. In 1791
after Chinn’s death, Leven Powell, founder of the nearby Loudoun County town of Middleburg, purchased the
property. Powell sold the property in 1807 to brothers Samuel, Joseph, and Thomas Hatcher. The Hatchers sold the
mill in 1818 and for the next couple of decades, the property passed through several owners until 1832 when Gourley
Hatcher purchased the property as sole owner. The mill has been known variously as Chinn’s Mill, Berlin Mill, and
Hatcher’s Mill. The mill operated until about1915. In 1924, the mill property was purchased by John “Jay” Phipps of
Long Island, New York, who served as a director of the U.S. Steel Corporation (which his father in partnership with
Andrew Carnegie helped to found), the Grace Steamship Lines, and the Guaranty Trust Company. Phipps purchased
the mill and its associated buildings as a “hunting box” and transformed the former industrial complex into a
picturesque country estate enlarging the house, building a small stable, and installing one of the earliest swimming
pools in the area.>*

A mill may have operated at the site of present-day Milan Mill (030-5434-0026) as early as 1764 when George
Lamkin made application to the county government to build a mill on his property on the east side of Goose Creek.
The mill is mentioned again in the 1771 conveyance of the property from George Lamkin to Daniel Jenifer.
Architecturally, the present building appears likely to have been constructed during the mid- to late nineteenth
century. Milan Mill produced corn meal, feed, and whole wheat flour, as well as cracked corn. The Glascocks owned
the farm for many years, and it was one of the last operating mills in Fauquier County, closing in December 1952.%°

Nineteenth-Century Communities

Other communities in the historic district area known to have developed during the first decades of the nineteenth
century and associated with the broad pattern of settlement within the historic district include Ash’s Store and
Rector’s Cross Roads. Ash’s Store, later named Oak Hill for its proximity to the Marshall home, was centered around
the stage road from Fredericksburg to Winchester and operated as a post office as early as 1803. The name was
changed to Oak Hill and during the nineteenth century, the crossroads village grew to include a general store, a
tannery, a blacksmith’s shop, a nearby mill (on Marshall’s land), a brick kiln, and several dwellings.>® Rector’s Cross
Roads, later renamed Atoka, is located in the northern part of the historic district at the intersection of the former
Ashby Gap Turnpike (U.S. Route 50) and the main road to Rectortown (Atoka Road). In 1830, the crossroads
consisted of little more than Caleb Rector’s two-story stone dwelling and its associated outbuildings and farmland
(known as Cross Roads Farm) (030-0705; 030-5434-0203). (N.B. Atoka Road formerly continued north across the
turnpike towards the Dulany home Welbourne. The roadbed is still visible on the land.) The house and most of the
farmland around it were owned by Rector family members into the late twentieth century. Caleb Rector married Anne
Hatcher, whose family also owned land in the area and built the circa 1820 brick-and-stone Shirland Hall on the north
side of Route 50. The crossroads community was well-known along the turnpike because of its good, strong spring
housed within the still-extant stone springhouse. A post office was established at Rector’s Cross Roads in 1838 and
was renamed “Atoka” in the 1890s.”’

Antebellum Period
The period between 1830 and 1840 was a golden age of sorts for residents in this area of the county because of the
prosperity experienced in the region due to profitable agricultural and commercial production. Among the bountiful
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crops being cultivated in the county were corn, wheat, and oats, and livestock production, including cattle, hogs, and
sheep. During this time, there were 76 gristmills in operation in the county.”® Many of the prominent homes in the
historic district have at their core dwellings that were built during the first decades of the nineteenth century; these
early houses were later enlarged into impressive structures. Among a few of the notable dwellings from the period is
Glenmore (030-0025; 030-5434-0049), a handsome two-story brick dwelling constructed about 1818 that is located
just north of Rectortown between Crenshaw Road and Goose Creek. The brick of the exterior walls is laid in a
Flemish-bond pattern on the front and a five-course-American-bond pattern on the sides and other features include a
mousetooth cornice, jack arches, and an English basement of stone. The stone bank barn on the farm also dates to the
nineteenth century. Other barns and outbuildings were added to the property in the early twentieth century. Glenmore
is located on land that in 1771 was sold by John Rector to Hezekiah Glascock, who increased the size of his farm to
over 300 acres. Glascock’s son, John, inherited the farm and is believed to have built the brick dwelling there.
Another son, Thomas Glascock, owned over 4,000 acres in the county and lived at Montmorency near Kerfoot. In the
twentieth century, the farm was owned by Emily Ramey and then Mary diZerega, both granddaughters of Thomas
Glascock. In 1949 the north wing was added to the house and in the late twentieth century, several additions were
made to the south end of the house. Mrs. diZerega, who died in 2004, was well-known as a breeder of Charolais
cattle and also operated the nearby Oakdale farm. She served as president of the American International Charolais
Association and of the Virginia Charolais Association, was the founding director of both the Virginia Cattle
Foundation and the Virginia Beef Exposition, and was a member of the Board of Visitors of Virginia Tech and the
advisory board of Virginia Tech's animal science department.”® Glenmore remains as one of the prominent cattle
farms within the district. The farmland consists of rolling pastures with woods and is dotted with historic
outbuildings, as well as more modern barns and tenant dwellings, which combine to illustrate the continual
agricultural nature of the property from the early nineteenth century to the present.

The construction of the Manassas Gap Railroad through Rectortown in 1852 added to the antebellum economic boom
the area was already experiencing. The railroad, which was chartered by the Virginia General Assembly in 1850, was
headed by president Edward Carrington, son of John Marshall. Marshall, who lived at Carrington near present-day
Markham, sought to link Strasburg in the Shenandoah Valley with markets in the east. The line would then join with
the Orange and Alexandria Railroad at Manassas Junction and travel on to the port of Alexandria. For area farmers,
this meant a fast and less expensive means of shipping agricultural goods and of receiving manufactured products
from the east and north; the line also provided passenger service. Areas that were deemed appropriate for a depot or
station quickly developed into important regional commercial centers. Among these were Markham, Piedmont
Station (later Delaplane), Rectortown, Salem (later Marshall), and The Plains. While initial plans called for the
railroad to bypass Rectortown, demonstrated commitment in the form of purchasing of subscriptions by local
businessmen and landowners of the Rector family apparently persuaded railroad officials to run the line from
Piedmont Station to Rectortown.?® The line ran just south of Alfred Rector’s 1835 store building (030-5434-0211),
which was soon enlarged and housed the post office. Such buildings, as well as the railroad line itself, which is still
used for freight trains, are district resources that are associated with the transportation theme. Rector’s Store,
however, would soon see a different use and gain a different historical association as it became a prison for captured
Union soldiers during the Civil War.
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Civil War

The military history theme is well represented in the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District by both sites of military
action that still retain their vistas and landscape of wartime, as well as by buildings known to be associated with
specific Civil War historical events. The area within the historic district was involved with the war from its very
beginning. Trains boarded on July 19, 1861 by Confederate troops at Piedmont Station (Delaplane) passed through
the historic district as they headed for the Battle of First Manassas. This event was historically significant because it
was the first time that troops had been transported to battle via rail. Given the presence of the railroad and other
important vehicular transportation routes (such as the Asbhy Gap Turnpike, the Rectortown Road, and nearby
Winchester Road), the area would continue to see troop movements by both sides throughout the war. Often the
movements resulted in the appropriation of residents’” horses, food, and other supplies. The railroad was also a
constant source of activity as one side tore up tracks and the other side tried to restore the tracks for use as a supply
line. In October 1862, Mosby moved two mountain howitzer guns to the ridge of the 725-foot-high knoll of Negro
Mountain, which overlooks Rectortown to the north, in an effort to stop Union forces that were rebuilding the railroad
line to continue the conveyance of troops and supplies into the area.”

One of the prominent events to occur within the historic district during the war, and possibly the most significant, was
the removal of Union Gen. George McClellan as commander of the Army of the Potomac. President Lincoln, having
grown impatient with McClellan’s perceived slowness in pursing the Confederates, relieved McClellan of his
command and replaced him with Gen. Ambrose Burnside. On November 7, 1862, the message was delivered to
McClellan who was encamped with his men in Rectortown outside of the home “Maidstone” (030-0834; 030-5434-
0217), a convenient location along Maidstone Road and above the railroad station.’? This event is commemorated
with a Virginia Civil War Trails marker located near Rector’s Store at the corner of Lost Corner Road and Maidstone
Road.

On June 10, 1863, a group of men—one account states 100—qgathered outside of Caleb Rector’s house in the
crossroads hamlet that bore the family name to meet with Maj. John S. Mosby. Having served ably as a first
lieutenant under Gen. J.E.B. Stuart’s command, Mosby, with authorization granted to him by Stuart and Lee via
letters sent in late March, organized the group as Company A of the 43" Battalion of the Virginia Cavalry, Partisan
Rangers.>® These rangers were to patrol an area that became known as “Mosby’s Confederacy” that included parts of
Fauquier, Loudoun, and Prince William counties. Stories of the Rangers’ daring exploits, narrow escapes, and
bravado in battle, including nighttime raids, have become legendary. Some of the events were documented in
memoirs written after the war, some were embellished. One well-documented event was the “lottery” Mosby held in
Rectortown—the Rangers’ unofficial “headquarters”—on November 6, 1864. Frustrated by the constant harassment
of supply lines and couriers by the Rangers, Union Gen. Philip Sheridan declared that any of Mosby’s men who were
caught were to be executed. In September 1864, six of Mosby’s men were executed in Front Royal. Mosby
responded in-kind by holding a lottery in Rectortown in which seven Union soldiers were selected for execution.
Soon after, the edict was lifted.**

Rectors Cross Roads (Atoka) was a favorite meeting place of the Rangers because of its access from all directions,
which gave the soldiers more opportunity for escape should they be surprised by Union soldiers who scoured the
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territory looking for Mosby and his men. Rectortown, too, served often as a rendezvous point for the Rangers. The
circa 1840, three-story brick building known as Luke Woodward’s store (030-0835; 030-5434-0234), one of the most
visually prominent and historically significant buildings in the village, is traditionally known as a favored meeting and
hiding place of the Rangers. The building, located on the north side of Rectortown Road at the Maidstone Road
intersection, is situated at the center of the village and commands a long view south towards the railroad tracks.
Several dwellings within the rural sections of the historic district were also known as “safe houses” or meeting sites
for Rangers. These often isolated farmhouses “offered remoteness, shelter, and fodder for their [the Ranger’s] mounts
and open countryside through which a Federal raiding party must approach.”® “Safe houses” afforded a meal, a bed,
and a friendly environment and possibly news of the enemy’s movements.

It is at the stone house Lakeland (030-5434-0070) that Mosby was shot while dining with the Ludwell Lake family on
December 21, 1864. Mosby is said to have lied about his identity to the interrogating Union soldier and was left to
die. The Lake family carried the general across their farm’s western field to a house on Aquilla Glascock’s Rockburn
farm, where he recovered.®® Richard Henry Carter’s home of Glen Welby (030-0914; 030-5434-0163), located in a
secluded area southeast of Rectortown, was another home often visited by Mosby for entertainment, as well as
military purposes. Carter, a merchant and a farmer, was one of the wealthiest men in the area and had organized the
“Piedmont Rifles” and served as a major in the Confederate army (the Rifles were later known as Company B, Eight
Regiment, Hunton’s Brigade). At Glen Welby, as at other safe houses, there was a “secret” escape door in the library
and in other sites in the house, which could allow the Rangers to flee if advancing Union troops were sited.®” At
Rawlingsdale (030-0564; 030-5434-0008), home of the recently-deceased John Douglas Rawlings whose son John
Wesley Rawlings had enlisted in the Confederate army as a private, Mosby is said to have tested the speed of captured
horses. The prominence of Rawlingsdale also afforded expansive views of the valley around it. “Heartland,” another
of Mosby’s headquarters, could be seen clearly across Goose Creek; after Heartland was burned in March 1864 by the
Federals, Mosby used Rawlingsdale, as well as Glen Welby, as headquarters. Mosby also stopped at Glen Welby to
compose his farewell speech to his troops in 1865.%

During that last part of June 1863, the northern part of the historic district was involved in a skirmish fought by the
cavalry troops of Confederate Gen. J.E.B. Stuart and Union Brig. Gen. Alfred Pleasonton, who advanced from the
east. The week-long encounter was devised as a screening and delaying tactic for Confederate Gen. Robert E. Lee,
who passed through Ashby’s Gap to the Shenandoah Valley and on to the north to Gettysburg. Stuart and Pleasonton
clashed near Middleburg at Mount Defiance on June 19, then Stuart’s men retreated west of Cromwell’s Run; on
June 20, the battle moved west of Goose Creek near the circa 1800 stone bridge. The battle moved westward on June
21 to Upperville; Pleasonton retreated to Aldie the next day, harassed along the way by Confederate batteries. Stuart
was again at Rector’s Cross Roads on June 23, where he received word to rendezvous with others at Salem
(Marshall) and to move north through Glascock Gap on to Pennsylvania.®® The area of Rector’s Cross Roads and the
surrounding farmland were encompassed by troops of both sides during these skirmishes. Views from the hills
around Atoka still convey the strategic military importance of the roadway, the ravines and hills, the stone walls, and
the bridge crossing at Goose Creek. The importance of both the landscape and the manmade elements of the region
played a significant role in the Confederates’ ability to thwart the Union troops’ discernment of Lee’s position.
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“Five Points” is a place on Atoka Road where five lanes or roads intersect (Old Carters Mill Road from the east and
west, Atoka Road from the north and south, and Five Points Road from the southeast). It was at this location on
January 1, 1865 that a band of Mosby’s Rangers skirmished with a group of Union soldiers headed to Middleburg.
The 80 Federals arrived in Rectortown from Harper’s Ferry under the command of Capt. A.N. Hunter. The Rangers,
only about 30 in number, quickly followed Hunter’s men along the Salem Road, then across fields towards
Middleburg, finally flanking them at Five Points. The surprise attack resulted in great losses for the group of Union
soldiers: four killed, about 12 wounded and 41 captured. In addition, the Confederates gathered 50 horses and
numerous supplies discarded by the fleeing Federals.”

Recovery after the war was slow, but area farms began to be reestablished and the commercial area of Rectortown
thrived. While the Manassas Gap Railroad would not run again under its old name, it did merged with the Orange and
Alexandria to become the Orange, Alexandria and Manassas Railroad and the right-of-way was cleared by the spring
1867. By 1880, there were six mercantile stores and two mills listed as operating in Rectorotwn and post offices were
again operating there and in Rector’s Cross Roads. Not all of the area’s residents remained, however. John S.
Mosby’s Rangers had disbanded on April 21, 1865 outside of the town of Marshall, refusing to surrender to Union
troops. However, Mosby himself had been ambivalent about the war prior to its onset and, after the war, was a vocal
Republican and supporter of President Grant. In 1878, Mosby was appointed as U.S. consul to Hong Kong, then later
served as a lawyer with the Southern Pacific Railway in San Francisco. He died in Washington, D.C., and is buried in
the town of Warrenton in Fauquier County, Virginia.”* Richard Henry Carter of Glen Welby was appointed as U.S.
consul to Panama, where he died in 1880. He, too, is buried in Warrenton.

Black Heritage

The development of African-American communities in the area of the historic district was the result of new freedoms
for the formerly enslaved residents of the area. The census of 1790 recorded that there were 11,157 whites in
Fauquier County compared with 6,642 slaves. Between the decades of 1820 and 1860, the number of African
Americans in the county equaled or exceeded that of the white population. By 1840 there were about 688 free blacks
living in Fauquier County compared with 10,501 free whites and 10,708 enslaved blacks. Although the free
population was a very small segment of the overall population, it was a population that grew between 1790 and 1860.
The original “Fauquier County Free Negro Register” listed 845 names.’? Slaves and free blacks had been part of the
pre-war population of the county and the area of the historic district, but the latter was known as an area with
relatively few slaves. Some credit the presence of residents of the Quaker faith, who did not hold slaves, with the low
number of slaves in the overall area; however, most of the large landowners in the area held fewer than 20 slaves—a
relatively low number compared with the large plantation holdings in the Tidewater region. Among those noted in the
1850 slave schedule are: Aquilla Glascock of Rockburn (8); Thomas Glascock of Glenmore (18); Isaac Lake (14);
Daniel A.7I§Ioweree (9); Ludwell Lake (11); Andrew Wolfe (sic), Jr. (10); Jeremiah Balthrope (4); and Luke Woodard
(sic) (15).

After the war, African-American residents began to live together in communities that were centered around home,
church, and school. These communities, which are linked to the black heritage theme, are testaments to the
endurance of the African Americans who lived largely enslaved in the county for over 100 years. Among these areas
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are Frogtown, located at the intersection of Frogtown Road and Rectortown Road, and Fortune Mountain, also known
as Seaton’s Mountain. Residences in these areas appear to date largely from the early twentieth century, although a
few dwellings may have sections that date to the late nineteenth century. Frogtown is a residential community
aligned on either side of Rectortown Road as it approaches Rectortown from the south. The area is said to have been
named for the noise of the peepers (frogs) that emerge each spring. Fortune Mountain, a rise of about 740 feet on the
west side of Rectortown Road, developed as a small neighborhood in the early twentieth century. A single road
accesses the area, which includes about 30 dwellings and three cemeteries. In general, Fauquier County experienced a
dramatic decrease in the African-American population after the Civil War with many black residents moving outside
of the state. The black residents who stayed in the area continued to work as field hands, laborers, and some leased or
purchased their own farms. Other vocations included blacksmithing and other mechanical pursuits. African-
American women also worked as field hands or as domestic servants, cooks, or laundresses. Fortune Mountain is
believed to have taken its name from the Fortune family, who lived in this area and owned land on the mountain in
the early twentieth century. The 1880 census lists Andrew Fortune as a 30-year-old farm hand living in the area with
his wife, Margaret Carter Fortune, who was 28 years old. She is listed as a housekeeper and the household included
their four children and Mariah Carter, Margaret’s 75-year-old mother. The family is again listed in the Scott District
census in the 1900 census with four of their five children—their eldest son John was living elsewhere. By 1920,
Andrew had died and Margaret was a widow living with her son-in-law and youngest daughter, William and Maria
Bailey. Deed records for the Fortune property indicate that they held about eight acres that had been purchased in
small parcels from about 1870 through the first decade of the twentieth century.”* Thomas Grant, whose family has
lived in the Frogtown area for over 100 years, stated that Tom Smith was an early resident of the area who also
operated his own farm. It was in the Old Grant House (030-5434-0148) that Sister Julia Grant held weekly prayer
meetings that led to the founding of Mount Olive Baptist Church (030-5434-0248), which is now located in the
village of Rectortown on Atoka Road. The church’s congregation draws members from Rectortown, Flat Woods,
Frogtown, and “on the Mountain.””® In 1870, records show that Ellen Taylor and James and Sallie Brown
Washington purchased five acres together on “Seaton Mountain.” Their grandson, Garland Smith, who passed away
in 1986, also held property on the mountain (030-5434-202). Family names historically associated with this area
include Smith, Carter, Grant, Tines, Hall, Washington, and Colston.”® While some younger family members have
moved to work in other cities, they maintain ties to the area, and most have second homes there.

In addition to owning property, educational opportunities also grew for African-American residents during the late
nineteenth century. It was not until 1870 that the public school system began in Fauquier County. Though the
Freedmen’s Bureau was active in other areas of the state in establishing schools for African Americans, records do not
show that this occurred in Fauquier County.”” In 1886, the School Board of Fauquier county purchased a one-half-
acre lot on a hillside on the southwest side of Rectortown Road from Peter King and his wife. In 1898, the Cherry
Hill School, intended for black students, was built on this site. The school, as described in a 1936 survey of county
schools, was a one-story frame building covered by a metal-clad gable roof, clad with weatherboards, and set on a
stone foundation. In 1959, the school, no longer in use, and the lot were sold.”

The school board then purchased a lot closer to Rectortown Road and, in 1963, Northwestern Elementary School was
opened as a segregated school for black students in grades one through seven. Edward K. Washington served as the
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first principal at Northwestern, so named for its location in the county. In 1969, the school was integrated and opened
to all elementary students in the area. When E.K. Washington retired in 1973, Claude Thompson succeeded him as
principal. Thompson served a total of 38 years in the Fauquier County school system with the majority of those served
at Northwestern. Beginning in the 1990s, school officials began to discuss the possible closure of Northwestern
because of needed repairs and the lingering problem of a reliable water source. In 2000, the closure issue was raised
again, but the decision was to retain Northwestern as an elementary school. During these discussions and the many
public hearings it involved, area citizens rallied to save their “community-based school.” Citizens also stated that the
school filled an important role in the community and was a stabilizing institution to which residents felt connected.
When Thompson retired as principal in 2001, residents honored his years of service and dedication to their
community by petitioning to have the school’s name changed to “Claude Thompson Elementary School.” The
rededication was held May 19, 2002.” The importance of the school to the community was evidenced by the
outpouring of support from area residents when the school was threatened with closure. The presence of the school
reflects the over 100-year presence of an educational facility in this area.

Foxhunting and the Horse Industry

The area within the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District gained significance under the themes of agriculture,
recreation, and social history in the early twentieth century. While the area had long been enjoyed by locals for
foxhunting and for horse riding pursuits, it was during the first decades of the twentieth century that its national
prominence grew and that wealthy northern residents relocated to the area and began to purchase inexpensive
farmland, which they enhanced into spreading equestrian estates.

Agriculture continued to be a major economic pursuit within the area and within the county at large. Within the
historic district, these pursuits focused around hay production, the raising of cattle and horses and other livestock,
orchards, dairies, and a few still-operating gristmills. It was this constancy of farming and the rural landscape that it
engendered that drew out-of-towners to the area and that made the land so perfectly suited for fox hunting. As one
article stated, the area was suited to hunting “as water naturally runs downhill.”®® Known as “heaven on earth” for
foxhunters, the area was described in the 1920s as:

...a galloping country, with large enclosures, divided by stone and rail fences, which, as
it is a grazing country, are substantial and of a good average height. There is very little
plough [cropland] and only a small proportion of woodland, so that foxes, once away
from covert, are apt to make good points and hounds run too fast and far for anything but
a clean-bred horse to be suitable for the Hunt Staff or for anyone who wants to see “the
best of the fun.”®

The description went on to note that most of the horses ridden in the hunt were locally bred. This description is as apt
today as it was in 1928 and points out that the hunt was focused on the chase, that livestock raising and grazing were
more prominent pursuits than crop production at the time, and that local horses (and also hounds) were best suited for
the terrain and the pursuit of the prey.
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The hunters who moved to the area in the early twentieth century were also welcomed, since the tradition was
intricately interwoven with the history of the area. Since the earliest settlers, the area had been productive as a
livestock raising land. Horses had long been a part of the pastoral setting of the area and had historically been used
for commerce, industry, transportation, and war. With the establishment of significant farms focused on breeding and
training, the use of the animal shifted to recreational pursuits and included the production of hunters, jumpers, flat
racers, and steeplechasers. Cattle raising remained important and continues to be a thriving industry in the area of the
historic district.

The history of foxhunting in the area is often traced back to Lord Fairfax and his importation of hounds in 1747. But
it was not only the gentry who enjoyed hunting; many English settlers owned hounds and continued hunting in the
colonies as they had in England. Horses, too, as mentioned, were a mainstay on area farms for economic purposes,
but saddle horses also were prized.

The history of foxhunting in the area is inextricably tied to a couple of area residents and a couple of major events.
One person closely associated with the organized hunt is Col. Richard Dulany of Welbourne, his Loudoun County
home located just north of the historic district’s northern boundary. Dulany’s own hunting pack is said to have been
organized in 1840. Prior to the Civil War, Dulany had spent time abroad and had imported breeds of cattle, hogs,
sheep, horses, and hounds in an attempt to improve his own herds. After the Civil War, there was little organized
foxhunting in the area, given the decimated levels of livestock. Dulany noted the poor conditions of the stock in the
region and, in 1853, founded the Upperville Colt and Horse Show—the country’s oldest continuing horse show—in
an effort to encourage area farms and breeders to improve the care of their horses.??

Harry Worcester Smith of Worcester, Massachusetts, is often noted as bringing national hunting attention to the area.
Smith, who was a wealthy industrialist and machinery inventor, as well as gentleman rider and champion
steeplechaser, was invited to visit and hunt in the area by the Dulany family. In the early 1900s, Smith visited the
area frequently for hunting. In Massachusetts, Smith rode with a pack of English-bred dogs, but in Virginia he
noticed that the American-bred hounds (locally raised) had more endurance for the long hunts over the open
landscape of the area.?* As Smith began to write about the virtues of the American hounds, there was inevitably a
challenge from those who believed the English hound superior. On November 1, 1905, Smith and A. Henry
Higginson, of Boston, Massachusetts, met in upper Fauquier County for the two-week-long challenge between
Smith’s American-bred foxhounds and Higginson’s imported, English-bred pack. The hounds hunted on alternate
days and, although neither pack caught a fox, Smith’s hounds were declared the winners for speed in the chase. The
event attracted “the attention of the whole hunting world” including a large number of observers to the area as well as
other foxhunters and representatives from nearly every eastern hunt club. The event received large amounts of press
from national newspapers as well as from sports-oriented media. It also attracted interest in breeding and improving
the American hound, and brought great attention to the area for foxhunting. 3

The two foxhunting clubs that hunt in the area of the historic district officially have been recognized for over 100
years. Col. Dulany’s 1840 pack of hounds is cited as the establishment of the hunt that was formally recognized by the
National Steeplechase and Hunt Association in 1899 as the Piedmont Fox Hounds (known until 1945 as the Piedmont
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Hunt).®* The Orange County Hunt was founded in Goshen (Orange County), New York, in 1900 and was formally
recognized in 1902. As early as 1901, the pack had hunted in the area as invited guests of Col. Dulany. In 1903, the
hunt reorganized in Fauquier County because of an increase in development in the area of the New York hunting
territory. Two of the original organizers, Edward H. Harriman and John R. Townsend, were also incorporators of the
Virginia hunt.®® Historically, membership of the Piedmont Fox Hounds was native-born Virginians, while the Orange
County Hunt was made up predominantly of northerners who had relocated to the area following the hunt and the
national exposure given to the area for foxhunting. The Orange County Hunt also specified that hunters must be
residents and own two hundred or more acres of land, or be a guest of a resident.

The hunt occurs only on land where the owners have agreed to allow it. Some farms within the district are closed to
the hunt. The good relation between the hunt leaders and the landowners is pivotal in the hunt’s continued success.
This became an issue in 1906 when Harry Worcester Smith, then the master of the Piedmont Fox Hounds, accused the
Orange County Hunt of hunting in territory that was traditionally Piedmont territory and had not been agreed upon as
communal. The resulting resolution was the delineation of “Segregation Lane”—a line that separated the two hunts.
The line runs from Route 50 along the unpaved lane of Hatchers Mill Road, past Kinross Farm, south to Smitten
Farm, south towards Rectortown, and then to Delaplane.®” Orange County territory lies to the west of the line, while
the Piedmont Fox Hounds territory lies to the east.

Harry Worcester Smith’s writing about the area and the subsequent relocation of the Orange County Hunt secured the
area’s reputation as Virginia “Hunt Country,” and the road from The Plains to Warrenton was dubbed “Jericho
Turnpike” after the Long Island highway that New Yorkers followed out to their hunting estates.®® As noted in a 1930
article in Fortune magazine: “They [northerners] came, they saw, and they purchased for a song (Yankee boodle)
whatever old estates were within hacking distance of the meets—estates with storied tables but empty pantries.”®
While the purchase of family estates was often a financial necessity in the area, it did engender some resentment from
locals and others who observed the influx of new residents. American poet Ogden Nash is said to have quipped, “The
Virginians from Virginia have to ride automobiles now, because the Virginians from Long Island are the only ones
who can afford to ride horses.” In the 1930s, Paul Mellon, whose family had earlier purchased the farm known as
Rokeby (west of the historic district), began adding to his landholdings in the area [among them, Milan Mill,
Edgecliff Farm, Oak Spring (site of the Woolf Mill), and part of the Lake farm], until by the 1940s he held about
4,500 acres. Mellon responded to Nash’s quip in his memoirs “What Nash failed to point out, however, is that the
preservation of land in large estates has effectively, so far, prevented the countryside from being ruined through
development in spite of its proximity to Washington.”® The economic and cultural impact of the organized hunts and
the associated horse industry on the area within the historic district can hardly be overstated.

In 1933, the Washington Times had a special “Fox Hunt Section” that included information on the active hunts in
Virginia, the history of the sport, and the impact of the hunts and hunt owners on the economies and livelihoods of the
areas in which they were located. Using the Scott District of Fauquier, in which the majority of the historic district is
located, as a “fair example of what happens in other concentrated foxhunt centers,” the article highlighted the tax
contribution of area landowners. The district contained 86,474 acres that were assessed at $2,859,760. Foxhunting
enthusiasts, a total of 54 persons, were estimated to have purchased 23,000 acres within the district with a total



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No.
1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic
District

Fauquier County, Virginia
Section 8 Page _79

assessment in excess of one million dollars. That meant that although the foxhunting owners held less than one-fourth
of the acreage in the district, they paid more than one-half of the taxes. Their land was deemed more valuable since
“hunting people spend more for improvements on their estates.” The other interesting point made in the article was
the domination of horses versus automobiles in the district. The 1932 farm statistics show that in Fauquier alone there
were 3,541 cars and trucks on farms compared to 6,200 horses and mules. Adding the totals of Fauquier, Loudoun,
and Rappahannock counties together, the totals were even more striking: 7,864 cars and trucks and 15,140 horses and
mules.®* These statistics provide a good picture of the concentration of the horse industry in the area of the historic
district during the early twentieth century and also illustrates the economic vitality of the industry and its related sport
of foxhunting to the general welfare of the county. The resources documented for this historic district illustrate that
agricultural resources continue to be found throughout the area. The 2002 farm statistics for the area also illustrate the
financial investment of farms in the county, which can be applied to the specific area within the historic district. In
2002, Fauquier County had 1,344 farms with a total acreage of 238,135. The average farm size was 177 acres, but the
majority of farms were 10 to 49 acres. There were 455 farms of 50 to 179 acres, 223 farms of 180 to 499 acres, and
47 farms of 500-499 acres. Within the historic district, there are several farms of 300 or more acres, all of which are
engaged in horse production and some of which also are involved in beef cattle production. The average estimated
market value of the land and buildings per farm was $1,082,382—second only to Southampton County. Fauquier
County also led the state in the number of horses on its farms (6,231) and was an extremely close second to Loudoun
County for the number of horses sold (709 in Fauquier and 711 in Loudoun).*? These statistics again support the
assertion that these farms are significant economic factors within the financial health of the county—by paying taxes
on highly valuable land and equipment, as well as by providing income for farm labor.** Equine and cattle farms in
the area are operated at a very high level with the buildings, fields, and landscapes being well-maintained and well-
kept. In addition, as Mellon correctly observed, the influence of landowners with large, contiguous acreages has
ensured the enduring rural character of the land.

During the 1920s and 1930s, several farms within the historic district were purchased by wealthy northerners who
were drawn to the area for foxhunting and other horse sports. Among the earliest purchased was the property known
as Hatchers Mill (030-0659; 030-5434-0065), which John “Jay” Phipps of Long Island purchased in 1924. Phipps
purchased the property, which included the historic stone owner’s house and the historic mill, as a “hunting box” for
himself. Phipps was the son of Henry Phipps, who together with Andrew Carnegie founded the enterprise that would
become U.S. Steel Corporation. John Phipps, in addition to inheriting a large portion of his father’s estate, was also a
director of the U.S. Steel Corporation, the Grace Steamship Lines, and the Guaranty Trust Company. Phipps would
continue to acquire land in the area for the next 20 years, amassing over 14 separate tracts totaling thousands of acres
that lay in both the Orange County and the Piedmont hunting territories.** In contrast to his very formal Long Island
retreat, Old Westbury House and Gardens, Phipps’ Fauquier estate assumed a more modest estate that enhanced the
historical buildings on the property and took advantage of the commanding site above Cromwell’s Run. Thus, this
former industrial site became a country estate that today continues to convey its historical industrial and recreational
significance. Phipps enlarged the two-story stone dwelling on the property with side wings laid in a random-rubble
stone pattern intended to match the original. He also converted outbuildings for new uses, such as converting the
dairy into a guest house. He added the stone stable and also changed the road’s approach to the main dwelling, which
takes a winding and picturesque turn to the west, past the upper level of the historic mill, before ending at the house.
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The paved drive is said to follow the former race for the mill. Phipps also added a swimming pool to the complex,
which was surrounded with large bolders in an effort to make it appear as a natural feature within the sloping, stony
landscape. Phipps’s son, Hubert, inherited the property after his father’s death in 1957.%

Phipps established a thoroughbred stud farm on property he owned on Zulla Road (outside of the historic district).
In 1930, Hubert Phipps, John’s son, purchased Rockburn Farm (030-0214; 030-5434-0050) from the Crenshaw
family, relatives of the Glascocks who had established Rockburn in the nineteenth century. Hubert engaged the skills
of Middleburg architect Billy Dew in designing an addition to the two-story stone house on the property. The one-
story, Federal-style entrance wing, complete with a Federal eagle relief above the main entrance, was added, as was
the two-story, mansard-roofed northern wing. Like his father, Hubert was a successful thoroughbred breeder. The
stable built at Rockburn on Crenshaw Road likely housed yearlings and horses in training. Hubert was also an avid
polo player and established a polo field along Goose Creek in an area locally known as “Lemmon’s Bottom.” In the
late twentieth century, the farm was part of the Atoka Farm holdings and was sold by Senator John Warner to Jack
Kent Cooke and became part of his Kent Farms (now known as Foxmount Farms, 030-5434-0069). Today, the field
is known as “Goose Creek Polo Club Field” and continues to host U.S. Polo Association matches.”®

Brothers Raymond and Winston Guest were also avid polo players who bought farms within the historic district area
during the early part of the twentieth century. The Guests were from Long Island and were grandsons of Henry Phipps
(their mother was Amy Phipps). Raymond Guest, who was later appointed as ambassador to Ireland by President
Johnson, purchased Stoneleigh (030-0904; 030-5434-0080) in the 1930s. The site of the present training barn on the
east side of the farm was the former polo practice field, which was retained by polo-player Robert VVanderpool Clark,
who purchased the farm from Guest. Guest also built a stable (22 stalls) on the farm, which was enlarged by the
present owner who now raises jumpers that are trained by Olympic champion Joe Fargis. Winston Guest usually
leased an estate near Middleburg for the foxhunting season, but in 1932, he purchased Benvenue (030-0635; 030-
5434-0161, now Smitten Farm) from his uncle John Phipps (who had purchased the farm in 1929 from the Kincheloe
family). Guest retained the farm for the next 10 years. Both Guests were renowned polo players and both were
inducted into the Polo Hall of Fame located in Lake Worth, Florida. The Guests also hunted with both the Piedmont
and Orange County Hunts.%’

Among other landowners who moved into the area during the 1920s and 1930s were Marshall Field 111, who
purchased the Chilly Bleak Farm (030-0569; 030-5434-0172), John Crosby Butler, who purchased Kelvedon (030-
0034; 030-5434-0079), and William Langley who owned Atoka Farm (030-0704; 030-5434-0067). In 1928, Marshall
Field, “a Chicago-bred Long Islander” best known as grandson and heir of the department store magnate, purchased
the 200-acre Chilly Bleak farm from Alexander Smith Cochran of Yonkers, New York, who had just purchased nearly
800 acres from James Wesley Rawlings of Rawlingsdale/Flint Hill Farm. John D. Rawlings had added the 320-acre
Woolf farm to the family holdings just as the Civil War had begun. Although Field seldom came to his Fauquier
estates, he owned a number of farms in the area and hunted with the Piedmont. Field is credited with building the
large stable on the farm.”® Field owned Chilly Bleak for only seven years, when he sold the property to Ethel S.
Darlington Garrett, wife of George Angus Garrett, who were avid hunters with the Piedmont club and added a number
of buildings to the Chilly Bleak property. George Garrett, a Washington, D.C.,-area investment banker and stock
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broker, was appointed as ambassador to Ireland from 1947 to 1950. In addition to enlarging the early-nineteenth-
century stone house on the farm, the Garretts added two tenant houses and a smaller stable. The work was designed
by Washington, D.C.,-based architect George Howe and is said to have been constructed by Hanback master builders
of Warrenton. The farm passed to Harry Darlington, Mrs. Garrett’s son by a previous marriage, and today remains in
the family’s ownership.*® These buildings remain on the farm, which is now largely occupied with cattle production.
In 1928, William C. Langley purchased about 300 acres of the nineteenth-century Hogue Farm near Rector’s Cross
Roads (Atoka), which he held until 1951. Langley, a Wall Street financier and a national figure in racing circles,
hunted with both the Piedmont and Orange County Hunts. Throughout the 1930s Langley added acreage to the farm
and enlarged the circa 1816 stone house, as well as barns and outbuildings, including the large hay barn and high-style
run-in shelters on the farm. The Hanbacks were also involved in these additions and renovations.'® The name
“Atoka Farm” was given to the property by Herbert Bryant, who purchased it in 1961. Bryant later sold the property
to John Warner, who would later become a U.S. senator from Virginia.'®* John C. Butler purchased Kelvedon in 1920
from Lewis Rector. Butler, who was from a Yonkers, New York, banking family, served as the president of the
Upperville Colt and Horse Show from 1941 to 1943. The Butlers, who hunted with the Orange County Hunt,
enlarged the stone dwelling at Kelvedon by extending the rear ell and adding the two-story wing on the north. Other
buildings built by the Butlers include the stable and two tenant dwellings. Mrs. Butler, who retained survivorship in
the farm until her death in 1980, also added the extensive gardens around the house.'*

In 1941, the Virginia Horsemen’s Association (now the Virginia Thoroughbred Association) was founded with the
intent of providing general information on horse breeding and production to owners in the state. Interrupted by World
War 11, the organization reorganized in 1946 and focused on expanding the horse industry in Virginia and the
legalization of racing (which would take nearly 50 years to accomplish). The group noted that in the 1920s the
winning of Virginia-bred horses was greater than that of all other states combined. In the 1940s, the area’s influence
in horse breeding expanded through the Virginia Yearling Tour and the subsequent sales of Virginia-bred horses at
the annual Saratoga auctions held by the Fasig-Tipton Company. Ownership of the company by Virginians beginning
in the 1940s ensured that Virginia breeders received top billing at the sales. The annual Virginia Saratoga Yearling
Tour involved Fasig-Tipton staff, members of the press, and hundreds of prospective buyers who visited Virginia
horse farms from Charlottesville to Fauquier. With the success of its thoroughbred bloodstock, Virginia’s horse
industry ranked third in the country in 1978, and numerous stakes horses were produced from the region.'®

This general success in breeding and sales gave rise to private farms specializing in standing studs (sires) and brood
mares, as well as farms that specialized in foaling and training. These enterprises continue to be represented by farms
within the historic district whose facilities are not of historic age, but that reflect the continuation of the horse industry
in the area. Among the farms with significant breeding and training programs are Laurel, Inc., an equine
reproduction center, and Merry Chase (formerly Polk-a-Dot), which is operated as an equestrian breeding, training,
and boarding facility. Other farms noted for raising and training of horses are Kelvedon, Smitten Farm, Stoneleigh,
and Kinross. The latter is noted as one of the significant facilities in the historic district and has produced several
steeplechase champions. At Smitten Farm, the brood mares are bred elsewhere but are brought to the Fauquier
property for foaling and initial training. Barns, paddocks, and schooling arenas and riding rings are ubiquitous
elements on most farms in the area despite their size (10-acres to 500-acres). Farms in the historic district with
boarding stables include circa 2000 Peakewood Pharm (030-5434-0077) located at the northwest intersection of Old
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Carters Mill Road and Atoka Road, with a 12-stall log and stone bank barn with its upper level hayloft and apartment
and adjacent outdoor arena, which has produced several champion jumpers, and Maresfield (030-5434-0114) on Five
Points Road, which offers boarding and lessons in the outdoor riding arena.

In addition to these farms, many of which are large-acreage enterprises, many of the smaller farms in the area also are
involved in the breeding and training of horses as flat racers, steeplechase, jumpers, and hunters. While considered
“hobby” farms or weekend farms, with the owners often referred to as gentleman farmers meant to reflect the fact that
the owners do not rely on the farms or the horse production for their primary income. These farms, however, are also
contributors to the local economy and horse industry by providing jobs for farm managers, veterinarians, supply
stores, trainers, breeders, and others.

The presence of these active hunts is also related to the theme of social history. Aficionados state that unlike its
English precedent, American foxhunting is most interested in the chase and contest of horse, hound, and fox rather
than the demise of the fox itself. While some opposition to the hunt has existed in the United States, it has not
reached the level of contention seen recently in the United Kingdom. The meeting of the hunt is also a social event
and brings neighbors and friends together. Permission is required to hunt on land, so that the relationship of hunter to
farmer/neighbors creates a bond within the community.**

Wexford is included as a resource that possesses exceptional importance with regard to the theme of social history.
The buildings on the property, located on Hatcher’s Mill Road on Rattlesnake Ridge, were built in 1963 by President
and Mrs. John F. Kennedy. The Kennedys were frequent visitors to the area given Mrs. Kennedy’s enthusiasm for
horse riding and foxhunting. Beginning in 1961, the couple leased at the Middleburg-area estate Glen Ora during
their retreats. The area was well-known to Mrs. Kennedy. As a youth, Mrs. Kennedy had been brought up at her
step-father’s Fairfax County estate and had ridden in pony shows, then horse shows, and then the hunting field in the
Middleburg area. While living in Washington, D.C., in the late 1950s, she also attended hunts of both the Piedmont
and Orange County Hunts with close friends such as Paul and Rachel Mellon and Paul and Eve Fout. In September
1962, Mrs. Kennedy purchased 39 acres, formerly part of the large landholdings of Hubert Phipps, in order to build
her own “hunting box.” The transaction was actually between Mrs. Kennedy and the Fouts, who one week prior had
purchased the land from Phipps.®®> (This may have been done for political purposes.) In a political irony given the
president’s support of a Civil Rights bill, the property was located on the country road (now a private lane known as
Hatcher’s Mill Road) that served as “Segregation Lane,” the delineation between the Piedmont and Orange County
hunt territories. Mrs. Kennedy sketched a modest, U-shaped plan, Ranch-style house that was clad with stucco.
Completed in the late spring 1963, the one-story house is covered by wood-shake-shingle gable roofs, is of concrete
block construction with a stucco finish, and features a long flagstone terrace across its western front, which has an
expansive view of the Blue Ridge Mountains. The house backs up to “Rattlesnake Ridge,” which is a wooded and
rocky outcropping to the east. In addition to the dwelling, a stable and a garage were also constructed on the site. The
house was intended to be simple and informal and to provide a private retreat for the First Family. According to Kitty
Slater, the president likely spent only one weekend at the house before his assassination. Mrs. Kennedy visited the
house afterwards, but in 1964 she sold the property, though she continued to visit the area for fox hunting until her
death in 1994. In 1980, Ronald Reagan leased the house during his 1980 presidential bid and used the house as a
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retreat during his presidency.'® While the Kennedys participated in the life of the community through Mrs.

Kennedy’s serious commitment to the hunt and by attending a few social events, such as their children’s pony shows
and Sunday Mass, they made a concerted effort not to impact the quietude of the region, which they highly valued.
There is no doubt, however, that their presence brought national and international attention to the area and has become
part of the Hunt Country lore and “mystique.”*%" Wexford, so named for the president’s family’s county of origin in
Ireland, is a contributing resource to the historic district as the only residence ever built by the Kennedys and is
notable as a residence that was built by a U.S. president while still in office. The property also has significant
associations with the social history of the historic district.

Conservation

The rural character of the land within the historic district is a credit to the landowners who have diligently sought to
maintain the natural landscape despite continuing developmental pressures. Given its proximity to Washington, D.C.,
the area has long been attractive as a weekend get-away and several second homes have been built in the area in the
last 50 years. But many landowners have ensured the continuing pastoral character of the area by placing their land
within conservation easements. These easements are held by various entities (e.g., Virginia Outdoors Foundation,
Fauquier County, and the Piedmont Environmental Council). A map of the historic district showing acreage in
easements illustrates that one could nearly traverse the district north-to-south walking (or riding) solely upon
easement properties.

The intact nature of the area has also been acknowledged by its inclusion within the Mosby Heritage Area, which was
formed in 1995 as the Commonwealth’s first heritage area and was designated to increase awareness of the historic,
cultural, and natural qualities that distinguish this part of Northern Virginia. The area encompasses about 18,000
square miles and contains landmarks and landscapes that Mosby and his men would have known. These resources
retain a high level of integrity and retain their ability to convey their historical significance with regard to antebellum
and Civil War-era life in the area.’®

The Goose Creek Association, founded in 1970, is a non-profit organization of over 600 members from western
Loudoun and northern Fauquier counties, which seeks to “protect and preserve the natural resources, historic heritage,
and rural quality of life found in this beautiful part of Virginia.” The members actively monitor local stream water
quality, land use, and legislation that has potential impact on the environment and quality of life in this region. The
fundamental mission of the Goose Creek Association is to protect and preserve the natural resources of the Goose
Creek watershed.'®
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ENDNOTES
(Section 7)

1. Lee Moffett, Water Powered Mills of Fauquier County ([Warrenton, Virginia]: [1972]), 29-69, passim.
On Crowmell’s Run:
e Hatcher’s (also Chinn’s) Mill, circal800, extant on the south side of U.S. Route 50;
e Carter’s Mill, circa 1808, on eastern edge of district, but not within district. Mill is no longer extant and new dwelling
has been built on the old site;
On Goose Creek:
e [Woolf?] Mill on Goose Creek tributary on Far View Farm (now Fieldstone), circal811, west side of Atoka Road, not
extant;
o Woolf’s Mill, circal798, entered from Oak Springs Road, mill remains excavated in 1992;
Milan Mill, circal764, possibly rebuilt after the Civil War, south side of Rectortown Road and east bank of creek;
extant, was in use until 1952;
e Evans Mill, circal791, not extant, site is northwest of Rectortown;
e Charles Rector’s Mill, circa 1775, one mile southwest of Rectortown on land owned by George Washington, not extant;
o Alfred Rector’s Mill, circal823, near Rectortown, not extant;
On Bolling Run [Branch];
e Oak Hill Mill, circa 1804, south of the village of Oak Hill, not extant, but race said to be visible.
2. A third site 44FQO0078, recorded the site of Woolf’s Mill, also located along Goose Creek. That site, however, was
completely excavated between 1985 and 992.
3. Linda Flint McClelland, J. Timothy Keller, Genevieve P. Keller, and Robert Z. Melnick. National Register Bulletin, Guidelines
for Evaluating and Documenting Rural Historic Landscapes (Washington, D.C.: GPO, 1989; revised 1999); Preliminary Information
Form, “Maizemoor” (Prepared by Moses and Holli Thompson, September 2000). Copy on file Archives, Virginia Department of
Historic Resources, Richmond. DHR Staff recommended that the resource was eligible at a local level under Criterion C (34 points).
The DHR Board determined that the resource was eligible on December 6, 2000; Maral S. Kalbian, “Final Report for Survey Update
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of Historic Properties in Fauquier County, Virginia.” (Prepared for Commonwealth of Virginia, Department of Historic Resources,
Richmond, Virginia, and Fauquier County, Department of Community Development, Warrenton, Virginia. 2002).

4. John Gott, Flint Hill Farm: A History (Athens, Georgia: New Papyrus Publishing Co., 2004), 23ff. Bryan Fairfax, heir and
brother to William Fairfax, called the parcel “Nutfield.” The land patent to Washington stated that the parcel contained 600
acres, but Washington’s papers indicate that he believed there were 885 acres to the land. After Washington’s death in 1802,
Charles Kemper made a survey of the land and found it to contain 1,063 acres.

5. Gott, 58.

6. Gott, 62-63.

7. Gott, 78-96.

8. The Marshall home near Markham known as “The Hollow” (030-0803) is listed individually on the National Register and is a
contributing resource within the John Marshall’s Leeds Manor Rural Historic District (030-5428).

9. Norman L. Baker, Valley of the Crooked Run: The History of a Frontier Road (Delaplane, Virginia: By author, 2001), 2, 67,
187.

10. Baker, 2. In 1770, Rector also had a purchased nearly 5,000 acres from Burgess and Mary Ball, which was part of the large
grant made to Charles Burgess in 1731. Joan W. Peters, “Roots: Another Side of John Rector,” in the Fauquier Democrat, 4
June 1987, n.p. This article by a local historian gives the bounds of Rector’s land as U.S. 50, to Route 710, Hatcher’s Mill Road
and Goose Creek. Through selling off of several pieces of this land to such families and the Kincheloes and Glascocks, Rector is
credited with having established about 21 families in the vicinity of Rectortown.

11. Maral S. Kalbian and Margaret T. Peters, National Register Nomination “Rectortown Historic District,” 030-5155, 2004,
Section 8, Page 35.

12. Washington, 101.

13. Clara S. McCarty, The Foothills of the Blue Ridge in Fauquier County, Virginia (Warrenton, Virginia: The Fauquier
Democrat, 1974), 79.

14. Eugene M. Scheel, The Guide to Fauquier: A Study of the Architecture and History of A Virginia County (Warrenton,
Virginia: Warrenton Printing and Publishing 1976), 36.

15. Francis B. Foster, Virginia Historical Inventory Survey Report “Lakeland,” 29 April 1937. Copy on file, Library of
Virginia, Richmond.

16. Kimberly Prothro Williams, A Pride of Place: Rural Residences of Fauquier County, Virginia (Charlottesville: Published for
Fauquier County by the University of Virginia Press, 2003), 10-11. Local limestone was used early on to produce stucco that
often finished the exterior walls of log and fieldstone buildings. “Also common in English precedents, this finished stucco
surface is a dominant character-defining feature of Fauquier’s built environment.”

17. Scheel, Guide, 36; Scheel, Loudoun Discovered: Communities, Corners & Crossroads, Volume Three: The Hunt County &
Middleburg (Leesburg, Virginia: Friends of the Thomas Balch Library, ca. 2002), 51.

18. McCarty, 121.

19. Francis B. Foster, Virginia Historical Inventory Survey Report “Greendale,” 17 June 1937. Copy on file, Library of
Virginia, Richmond.

20. Bob Barron and Cynthia McLeod, “Cundiff-Kincheloe House/Treworgey (Greendale) File no. 30-741,” Virginia Historic
Landmarks Commission Survey, December 1979. Copy on file, Archives, Virginia Department of Historic Resources,
Richmond. Brandt may have lived at Texas Farm near The Plains, rather than at this property. Brandt and his wife, Mary, and
two of their children are buried in the Kincheloe cemetery on the adjacent to Greendale.

21. Bob Barron and Cynthia McLeod, “Kelvedon, File no. 30-34,” Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Survey, December
1979. Copy on file, Archives, Virginia Department of Historic Resources, Richmond.

22. Bob Barron and Cynthia McLeod, “Benvenue/Old Kincheloe Place, File no. 30-635” Virginia Historic Landmarks
Commission Survey, August 1979. Copy on file, Archives, Virginia Department of Historic Resources, Richmond.
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23. Prothro, 90; see photograph of Shirland Hall (not dated) in Eleanor Lee Templeman and Nan Netherton, Northern Virginia
Heritage ([Arlington, Va.]: Privately published by E. L. Templeman, 1966), 164.

24. Cynthia McLeod, “Chilly Bleak, File no. 30-569” Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Survey, July 1979. Copy on
file, Archives, Virginia Department of Historic Resources, Richmond.

25. Jennie Darlington, owner of Chilly Bleak, personal communication, 26 September 2007.

W.J. Hanback, Builder Papers, Ledger Books 1949-1950, Courtesy of Cheryl Hanback Shepherd, Warrenton, Virginia.

26. Francis B. Foster, Virginia Historical Inventory Survey Report “Glanville,” 2 August 1937. Copy on file, Library of
Virginia, Richmond.

27. Scheel, Loudoun Discovered, 50-51.

28. Richards Associates, “Woolf’s Mill, Fauguier County, Virginia: Final Archaeological Report,” ([Arlington, Virginia], June
1992). Copy of report in Archives, Virginia Department of Historic Resources, Richmond. The remains of Woolf’s Mill
(44FQO0075), located on the east side of Goose Creek at the end of Oak Springs Road, was professionally excavated between
1985 and 1992 by Richards Associates for the property owner, Paul Mellon. Historical research conducted with the excavation
indicated that mill likely began around 1798 and utilized a rare type of horizontal water wheel known as a tub wheel. According
to the report, this was the first tub mill discovered and excavated in Virginia. The excavated artifacts (tub wheel, flume, and
forebay) were donated to the Virginia Department of Historical Resources.

Charles Rector, son of John Rector the founder of Maidstone/Rectortown, is also known to have operated a mill one mile
southwest of Rectortown near the confluence of Chattin’s Run and Goose Creek. Constructed during the American Revolution,
the mill was established on property that was actually owned by George Washington and the mill was erected without the
owner’s consent. Washington, who noted the mill in a letter to his agent Battaile Muse on December 4, 1786, did not take action
against Rector since he felt that the amenity added value to the land, though he urged his agent to watch for further
encroachment. Moffett, 39; Gott, 28-30; George Washington, The Writings of George Washington from Original Manuscripts
Sources: 1745-1799, (Volume 29) J. C. Fitzpatrick, editor, (Washington: U. S. Government Printing Office, 1931-1944), 99-
100..

29. Moffett, 37.

30. Kalbian and Peters, “Rectortown Historic District,” Section 7, Page 10.

31. Scott David Arnold, compiler, A Guidebook to Virginia’s Historical Markers, Third Edition (Charlottesville, Virginia:
University Press of Virginia, 2007), 55. This marker (B-25) formerly stood near the Caleb Rector house in Atoka, but was moved
to its present site along U.S. Route 50 in 1958. Scheel, Loudoun Discovered, 55.

32. John S. Salmon, compiler, A Guidebook to Virginia’s Historical Markers, Revised and Expanded Edition (Charlottesville,
Virginia: University Press of Virginia, 1994), 12. This historic event is commemorated with a State Highway Marker (B-21) and
a Civil War Trails Marker (Piedmont Station) both located near the rail line in Delaplane.

33. Eugene M. Scheel, The Civil War in Fauguier County (Warrenton, Virginia: Fauquier National Bank, ca.1985), 79-80;
James A. Ramage Gray Ghost: The Life of Col. John S. Mosby (Lexington, KY: University Press of Kentucky, 1999), 205-206.
34. Kalbian and Peters, “Rectortown Historic District,” Section 8, Page 40; Ramage, 213-215.

35. Scheel, Guide, 36; Scheel, Civil War in Fauquier County, 74.; Mosby Heritage Area Tour, “5-Point Skirmish - January 1, 1865,”
http://www.civilwaralbum.com/misc5/mosby1.htm, accessed 22 February 2008.

36. Kalbian and Peters, “Rectortown Historic District,” Section 7, Page 6, 11.

37. Cynthia McLeod, “Maizemoor, File no. 30-669,” Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Survey, September 1979. Copy on
file, Archives, Virginia Department of Historic Resources, Richmond.

38. Thomas Grant, Frogtown resident, personal communication, 13 August 2007.

39. W.G. Puller, Jr., State Agent, and William P. Hundley, Special Agent, with Firemen’s Insurance Co., Newark, New Jersey,
“Survey of Schools, [Fauquier County, Virginia],” 1936. Copy on file at the Afro-American Historical Society of Fauquier County,
The Plains. This report lists each school in county and describes its construction date, physical appearance, and attributes; Fauquier
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County Deed Book 205, Page 630, 1959 (ARCH 04134). Copy on file at the Afro-American Historical Society of Fauquier County,
The Plains; Fauguier County Deed Book 77, Page 334, 1886.

40. “History of Claude Thompson Elementary” in program for “Groundbreaking Ceremony Claude Thompson Elementary School,”
23 October 2005; Blanche Grant, personal communication, 13 August 2007.

41. National Register nomination “The Mill House,” DHR #30-659, Form completed by Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission
Staff, 1985, Section 8, Page 2. Copy on file, Archives, Virginia Department of Historic Resources, Richmond.

42. Calder Loth, VDHR staff, personal communication, electronic mail message, 4 December 2007.

43. Joe Clancy, Jr., “Kinross Farm Rising to the Top,” in Mid-Atlantic Thoroughbred, September 2004. Accessed on the World
Wide Web at: http://www.marylandthoroughbred.com/midatlantic/current/lead_articleO4/sept.htm on 25 February 2008.

44. Suzanne Dunham, horse farm manager, Smitten Farm, personal communication, 15 August 2007.

(Section 8)

45. H.C. Groome, Fauquier During the Proprietorship: A Chronicle of the Colonization and Organization of a Northern Neck
County (Bowie, Maryland: Heritage Books, 2002), 64-65. This section gives a detailed description of the boundaries and lists the
present Virginia and West Virginia counties now within the former proprietary.

46. Alexander MacKay Smith, Foxhunting in North America, (Millwood, Virginia: The American Foxhound Club, 1985)217-218;
Kitty Slater, The Hunt Country of America Revisited (New York: Cornwall Books, 1987), 24.

47. Baker, 38;

48. Baker, 53-61. Washington’s “Springfield” or “Ashby’s Bent” tract contained 2,682 acres and was part of the 1731 grant to
George Carter, which equaled 3,112 acres (again, these parcels were underestimated at the time of conveyance). Washington divided
the Ashby’s Bent tract into 20 lots for annual rents.

49. Gott, 23-25.

50. Kalbian, “Final Report for Survey Update of Historic Properties in Fauquier County,” 21.

51. Groome, 106, 207; McCarty, 75.

52. Baker, 2, 67, 187; Gott, 28.

53. Richards Associates, 10-22, 60.

54. National Register nomination “The Mill House,” Section 8, Pages 1, 4-5.

55. Moffett, 37-38.

56. McCarty, 79.

57. Kalbian and Peters, “Atoka Historic District,” Section 8, Pages 8-10; Scheel, Loudoun Discovered, 51.
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(Lexington, KY: University Press of Kentucky, 1999), 203-204.
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GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

UTM REFERENCES

Zone 18

Easting Northing Easting Northing

(Rectortown Quad)
A 255648 4318359 \ 253165 4308940
B. 256148 4318122 W. 252602 4308663
C. 256509 4317827 X. 252352 4308137
D. 256628 4318135 Y 252122 4309011
E. 256630 4318135 Z. 251303 4309302
F. 257287 4317710 (Marshall Quad)
G. 258384 4317334 AA. 251095 4306296
H. 257055 4313728 BB. 250963 4305387
I 256894 4313423 (Orlean Quad)
J. 257765 4312979 CC. 249558 4306090
K. 257135 4311748 DD. 249624 4306153
L. 256294 4312220 EE. 249153 4306521
M. 255181 4310814 FF. 249099 4306443
N. 256237 4310147 GG. 248721 4306743
0. 255896 4309486 (Upperville Quad)
P. 255130 4309906 HH. 248857 4308130
Q. 255020 4309403 . 247969 4308149
R. 254654 4309403 JJ. 247443 4309647
S. 254193 4308449 KK. 248989 4310957
T. 253408 4308878 LL. 249218 4310888
U. 253293 4308457 MM. 249398 4311212

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION:

The boundaries of the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District are outlined with a heavy black line on the accompanying map
labeled Cromwell’s Run Historic District, Fauquier County, Virginia, obtained from the Fauquier County GIS Office located in
Warrenton, Virginia. Generally, these boundaries are, beginning at the northwest corner at Goose Creek and U.S. Route 50
(John S. Mosby Highway), then east to Rector’s Lane, then to the western edge of the Atoka Historic District, north across U.S.
Route 50 to the Fauquier-Loudoun County line, east along property lines to the east side of the Boardman property, then south to
U.S. Route 50, east to the east property line of the Hatcher’s Mill property, south to Cromwell’s Run to its intersection with the
Smitten Farm property line, then south to the northeast property line of Smitten Farm, following that property line to the east,
then to the south, then to the west to Cromwell’s Run, then south to the intersection with the Chilly Bleak property line,
following it to Frogtown Road, then south along the Glen Welby property line, following it to its intersection with the
Maizemoor property line, south to its intersection with Whiting Road, then following Whiting Road north to its intersection with
Old Rectortown Road, following it southwest to its intersection with Rectortown Road, following the road south to its
intersection with the south line of the Johnson property, then following property lines west to their intersection with the Southern
Railway tracks, following the train tracks south to a point in line with the old O’Bannon Lane, following the lane south to its
intersection with U.S. Route 55 (Grove Lane), following Grove Lane to the western line of the Rutledge property, following that
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line to the north to its intersection with the Oak Hill property line, following that line west to its intersection with U.S. Route 55,
following the road (except for a couple of excluded properties) north to its intersection with Maidstone Road, northeast along
Maidstone Road (except for a couple of excluded properties) to its intersection with Bolling’s Branch, following the branch to its
intersection with Goose Creek, and following Goose Creek north to the original point.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION:

The boundaries of the Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic District were drawn to include the largest concentration of rural historic
buildings in the area and are generally described as following the courses of Goose Creek and Cromwell’s Run, the tax parcel lines of
properties, major roadways, and natural landscape features whenever possible. Areas of non-contributing resources (e.g., along Grove
Lane, Maidstone Road, the John S. Mosby Highway, and Chestnut Forks Road) have been excluded. The selected area includes the
historic village of Rectortown and the crossroads community of Atoka, as well as the historically African-American communities of
Frogtown and Fortune Mountain. The central section of the historic district is largely composed of equestrian estates and smaller
farms that represent the historical appearance and character of the area.
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Cromwell’s Run Rural Historic

Fauquier County, Virginia

All photographs are of
CROMWELL’S RUN RURAL HISTORIC DISTRICT
Fauquier County, Virginia
VDHR File Number 030-5434
Date of Photographs: October 2006-September 2007
Photographer: Debra A. McClane

All negatives (23562, 23563, 23564, 23565, 23566, 23567, 23568, 23569, 23570, 23571, 23572, 23573, 23574, 23575, 23576, 23577,
23590, 23591, 23592, 23593, 23594, 23595, 23596, 235614, 235615, 235616, 23617, 23618, 23619, 23676, 23677, 23678, 23679,
23680) are stored with the Virginia Department of Historic Resources.

SUBJECT: Flint Hill Farm (030-5434-0008)
VIEW: Main dwelling, view to south
Negative No.: 23565:8

Photo 1 of 29

SUBJECT: Oak Hill (030-5434-0006)

VIEW: Main dwelling, original section to right,
circa 1818 section to left, view to east

Negative No0.:23564:17

Photo 2 of 29

SUBJECT: Lakeland (030-5434-0070)
VIEW: View to south

Negative No.: 23574:15

Photo 3 of 29

SUBJECT: Lakeland School (030-5434-0158)
VIEW: View to north/northwest

Negative No.: 23616:35

Photo 4 of 29

SUBJECT: Woodside (030-5434-0186)
VIEW: Front, view to north

Negative No.: 23678:5

Photo 5 of 29

SUBJECT: Kelvedon (030-5434-0079)
VIEW: Front, view to west

Negative No.:23590:14

Photo 6 of 29

SUBJECT: Smitten Farm (030-5434-0161)
VIEW: Main dwelling, view to north

Negative No0.:23618:5

Photo 7 of 29

SUBJECT: Smitten Farm (030-5434-0161)
VIEW: Cattle barn complex, view to north
Negative No.: 23617:33

Photo 8 of 29

SUBJECT: Shirland Hall (030-5434-0059)
VIEW: Front, view to northeast

Negative No0.:23571:22

Photo 9 of 29

SUBJECT: Glenmore (030-5434-0049)
VIEW: View to east

Negative No0.:23569:23

Photo 10 of 29

SUBJECT: Chilly Bleak (030-5434-0172)
VIEW: Front, view to east

Negative No.: 23677:1

Photo 11 of 29

SUBJECT: Crooked House
VIEW: Front, view to east
Negative No.: 23569:19
Photo 12 of 29

SUBJECT: Hatcher’s Mill

VIEW: Mill with Cromwell’s Run in foreground,
view to southwest

Negative No0.:23572:21

Photo 13 of 29
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SUBJECT: Milan Mill (030-5434-0026)
VIEW: Mill, view to west

Negative No0.:23567:21

Photo 14 of 29

SUBJECT: Negro Mountain
VIEW: View to east
Negative No.: DIGITAL
Photo 15 of 29

SUBJECT: Sunnyside (030-5434-0018)
VIEW: Front, view to NW

Negative No.: DIGITAL

Photo 16 of 29

SUBJECT: Patrickswell (030-5434-0082)
VIEW: Tenant dwelling, front, view to southeast
Negative No0.:23592:13

Photo 17 of 29

SUBJECT: Claude Thompson Elementary School
(030-5434-0137)

VIEW: Front, view to southwest

Negative No0.:23615:23

Photo 18 of 29

SUBJECT: Luten Bridge over Goose Creek
(030-5434-0052)

VIEW: View to northeast

Negative No.: 23570:32

Photo 19 of 29

SUBJECT: Wexford (030-5434-0061)
VIEW: Front, view to southeast
Negative No.: DIGITAL

Photo 20 of 29

SUBJECT: Kinross (030-5434-0128)
VIEW: Training Barn/Stable, view to west
Negative No.: 23614:32

Photo 21 of 29

SUBJECT: Flint Hill Farm (030-5434-0008)

VIEW: General view to north showing board fences and

coop
Negative: 23565:22
Photo 22 of 29

SUBJECT: Old Carters Mill Road
VIEW: General view to west
Negative: 23595:5

Photo 23 of 29

SUBJECT: Kinross (030-5434-0128)

VIEW: General view to east towards Cromwell’s Run
Negative: 23596:35

Photo 24 of 29

SUBJECT: Goose Creek

VIEW: General view to north along Crenshaw Road
Negative No.: DIGITAL

Photo 25 of 29

SUBJECT: Glenmore (030-5434-0049)

VIEW: General view to southwest from house yard showing
stone wall, barn, and tile silo

Negative: 23569:25

Photo 26 of 29

SUBJECT: Glenmore (030-5434-0049)
VIEW: Stone bank barn, view to northeast
Negative: 23569:36

Photo 27 of 29

SUBJECT: Glen Welby (030-5434-0163)
VIEW: Front, view to northeast

Negative No.: DIGITAL

Photo 28 of 29

SUBJECT: Rockburn (030-5434-0050)
VIEW: Front, view to northwest
Negative: 23570:13

Photo 29 of 29
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